
             
            

 

 

 

AGENDA  



LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

AGENDA 
 

    LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION  
OF MONTEREY COUNTY 

 
Monday, September 22, 2014 

4:00 p.m. 

Board of Supervisors Chambers 
Monterey County Government Center 

168 West Alisal Street, First Floor 
Salinas, California 

The Local Agency Formation Commission welcomes you to its meetings.  This meeting has been noticed according to the Brown 
Act.  If you want to submit documents, please bring 15 copies for distribution.  The meeting will be broadcast live on Comcast 
Cable TV Channel 28, and is rebroadcast every Monday at 4:00 p.m.  Agendas and reports are available on our website at least 
72 hours before each meeting. 
  

Roll Call 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Public Comments 
Anyone may address the Commission briefly about items not already on the Agenda.  Please fill out a 
Speaker Request Form available on the rostrum. 

Consent Agenda 
All items on the Consent Agenda will be approved in one motion and there will be no discussion on 
individual items, unless a Commissioner or member of the public requests a specific item to be pulled 
from the Consent Agenda for separate discussion.   

1.   Approve Draft Minutes from the June 23, 2014 LAFCO Regular Meeting. 
      Recommended Action:  Approve minutes.   

2.   Accept Report on Anticipated Future Agenda Items. 
      Recommended Action:  Accept report.  

 3.  Approve Registers of Checks for May, June, July and August 2014. 
           Recommended Action: Approve registers.   

4.  Approve Amendment No. 5 to Executive Officer’s Employment Agreement. 
      Recommended Action: Approve amendment. 

5.  Accept Report on Activities of the California Association of Local Agency Formation 
     Commissions.  
     Recommended Action: Accept report.                                                           

                            2014  
         Commissioners 

 
                                     Chair 
                  Steve Snodgrass  
     Special District Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
           Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

     
              Fernando Armenta  

     County Member, Alternate 
 

                Louis R. Calcagno  
                  County Member  

         
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                                 Joe Gunter               
           Alternate, City Member 
          

                      Maria Orozco 
                         City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 
      Special District Member, 
                                Alternate 

 
                          Ralph Rubio 
                         City Member 

 
                       Simón Salinas 
                   County Member 

                 
                 Graig R. Stephens  
      Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
                 Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831-754-5838 
              Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
  www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

  



New Business 

6. Consider Appointments to LAFCO Committees.  
Recommended Action: Consider the Chair’s appointments to LAFCO Committees. 

Public Hearing 

7. Conduct a Public Hearing to Consider the Following Items Pertaining to the City of Gonzales: 

a. A Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales, prepared by 
LAFCO of Monterey County 

and 

b. An Application by the City of Gonzales for a Comprehensive Sphere of Influence Amendment. 
The proposed Amendment would expand the City’s Sphere of Influence by approximately 2,038 
acres (LAFCO File No. 14-03). 

       Recommended Action:  Adopt a Resolution to: 

i. Find that the Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study is exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as information collection, under 
Sections 15306 and 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; 

ii. Approve the 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales;  
iii. Find that, pursuant to CEQA, the City of Gonzales has certified an Environmental 

Impact Report (EIR) and a subsequently adopted 2014 EIR Addendum that adequately 
address the potential environmental effects of the proposed Sphere of Influence 
Amendment; and 

iv. Approve the proposed Sphere of Influence Amendment. 
 

Executive Officer’s Report      

The Executive Officer may make brief announcements in the form of a written report or verbal update, and may not require 
Commission action.  The public may address the Commission on these informational items. 
 
Commissioner Comments 

Individual Commissioners may comment briefly on matters within the jurisdiction of LAFCO.  No discussion or action is 
appropriate other than referral to staff or setting a matter as a future agenda item. The public may address the Commission 
on these informational items. 

 
Adjournment to the Next Meeting  

The next Regular LAFCO Meeting is on Monday, October 27, 2014 at 4:00 p.m. 
 
Alternative Formats and Facility Accommodations:  If requested, the agenda will be made available in alternative formats 
to persons with a disability, as  required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12132) and 
the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof.  Also if requested, facility accommodations will be made 
for persons with disabilities.  Please contact (831) 754-5838 for assistance. 
 

2 
 



             

            1 
 

 

 

 

Draft Minutes 



   
AGENDA 

ITEM 
NO. 1 LAFCO of Monterey County   

   _ 
 

                        LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
                              

 
DRAFT MINUTES 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION  
OF MONTEREY COUNTY 

 
Monday, June 23, 2014 

4:00 p.m. 
Board of Supervisors Chambers 

Monterey County Government Center 
168 West Alisal Street, First Floor 

Salinas, California 
 

Roll Call 
 
Members Present 
Commissioner Calcagno (Chair) 
Commissioner Snodgrass (Vice Chair) 
Commissioner Darington 
Commissioner Gourley 
Commissioner Gunter 
Commissioner Poitras 
Commissioner Salinas 
Commissioner Stephens  
 
Members Absent (Excused Absences) 
Commissioners Orozco and Rubio 
 
Members Not Present (Presence Not Required) 
Commissioner Armenta 
 
Staff Present 
Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer  
Leslie  J. Girard, General Counsel  
Gail Lawrence, Clerk to the Commission 
 
Call To Order 
The Local Agency Formation Commission was called to order by Chair Calcagno at 
4:04 p.m. in the Monterey County Board of Supervisors Chambers. 
 
Pledge of Allegience 
Commissioner Calcagno led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Publics Comments  

                                 There were no Public Comments on items not on the Agenda.   
 

  

                            2014  
          Commissioners 

 
                                    Chair 
                Louis R. Calcagno  
                 County Member  

 
                             Vice Chair 
                Steve Snodgrass  

     Special District Member  
 

              Fernando Armenta  
County Member, Alternate 

 
          Sherwood Darington  
                     Public Member 

 
                       Matt Gourley 
  Public Member, Alternate 

 
                             Joe Gunter   
     Alternate, City Member 

          
                       Maria Orozco 
                        City Member 

                                           
                 Warren E. Poitras 

       Special District Member, 
                              Alternate 

 
                             Ralph Rubio 
                           City Member 

 
                         Simón Salinas 
                     County Member 

                 
                  Graig R. Stephens  
        Special District Member 

 
                                 

                            Staff 
 

           Kate McKenna, AICP 
                 Executive Officer 

 
 

132 W. Gabilan Street, #102 
                 Salinas, CA  93901 

 
                       P. O. Box 1369 
                Salinas, CA  93902 

 
          Voice:  831-754-5838 
              Fax:  831-754-5831 

 
   www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 

  



       
 
      Special Business  
 
1.   Administer the Oath of Office for Re-Appointment of Public Member Commissioner Sherwood  
         Darington and Alternate Public Member Commissioner Matt Gourley.   
 
Chair Calcagno administered the Oath of Office to Public Member Sherwood Darington and to  
Alternate Public Member Matt Gourley.  The Commissioners took their seats on the dais.  
    

Consent Calendar 
 
2.     Adopt the Draft Minutes of April 28, 2014. 
  
3.      Accept Notes from the May 16, 2014 Budget and Finance Committee Meeting.  
 
4.      Accept List of Anticipated Future Agenda Items. 
 
5.      Approve Register of Checks for April 2014. 
 
6.      Accept Report of Draft Financial Statements as recommended by the Budget and Finance  
         Committee for Period Ending March 31, 2014.  
 
7.   Approve Budget Amendment No. 2 for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 Budget, and Related Actions as  
          recommended by the Budget and Finance Committee.   
 
8.  Approve Salary Range and Flexible Classifications for LAFCO Staff Analyst Positions as  
          recommended by the Budget and Finance Committee.  
 
9.  Accept Report on Activities of the California Association of Formation Commissions as  
          recommended by the Budget and Finance Committee.  
 
There were no Public or Commissioner comments for the Consent Items.  
 
Commission Action  
Upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, the Consent Items were   
approved.   Absent:  Commissioners Orozco and Rubio. 
 
        New Business 
 
10.  Consider Draft LAFCO Comment Letter Regarding a Draft Initial study and Mitigated Negative  
         Declaration/Environmental Assessment for the California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery  
         Project – Phase 1 (California Department of Veterans Affairs) . 
 
Public Comments  
There were no Public or Commissioner comments.  
 
Commission Action  
Upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner Stephens, the Draft LAFCO   
Comment Letter Regarding a Draft Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration/Environmental  
Assessment for the California Central Coast Veterans Cemetery Project – Phase I (California  
Department of Veterans Affairs) was approved.   Absent:  Commissioners Orozco and Rubio. 
 
          

2 
 



         
 
       
          
 11.   Consider Report on Business Items for the 2014 CALAFCO Annual Conference in Ontario,  
            California on October 15-17 and  approve the recommended actions:   
                 a.   Authorize Attendance.  
                 b.   Designate Voting Delegates 
                 c.  Consider nominations for Coastal Region County Member and Special District Member 
                        Seats on the CALAFCO Board of Directors.  
                 d.   Consider nominations for CALAFCO Achievement Awards.  
 
Public Comments  
There were no Public comments. The Commissioners reviewed the recommended actions.  
 
Commission Action  
Upon motion by Commissioner Salinas, seconded by Commissioner Snodgrass, the Commission   
(a) Authorized the Executive Officer, two LAFCO Senior Analysts, Commissioners Gunter and Salinas,  
 and  LAFCO General Counsel to attend the 2014 CALAFCO Annual Conference in Ontario, California  
 on October 15-17; Further, (b) The Commission selected voting delegates to the CALAFCO Annual  
 Business Meeting; (c) No nominations for Coastal Region County Member and Special District  
 Member Seats on the CALAFCO Board of Directors; and, (d) A full consensus of the Commissioners  
 present, supported and nominated LAFCO Executive Officer, Kate McKenna, for several 2014  
 CALAFCO Achievement Awards.   Absent:  Commissioners Orozco and Rubio.                
 
     Executive Officer’s Report 
        None.  
 
       Commissioners Comments 
      None.  
 
       Selection of Chair and Chair Pro Tempore  
        
12.   Select the LAFCO Chair and Chair Pro Tempore for a Period Ending in May 2015.  
   
Public Comments         
There were no Public comments.  
 
Commission Action 
Upon motion by Commissioner Stephens, seconded by Commissioner Salinas, Commissioner Steve 
 Snodgrass was nominated as Chair for a period ending in May 2015. A full consensus of the      
 Commissioners present approved the motion.  Absent:  Commissioners Orozco and Rubio.  
 
 Commission Action 
 Upon motion by Commissioner Stephens, seconded by Commissioner Snodgrass, Commissioner  
 Sherwood Darington was nominated as Chair Pro Tempore for a period ending May 2015. A full  
 consensus of the Commissioners present approved the motion.  Absent:  Commissioners Orozco and  
 Rubio.  
 
        Closed Session 
     
 13.   The Commission will conduct a Public Employee Annual Performance Evaluation in Closed Session 
         Pursuant to Code Section 54957.  Position:  LAFO Executive Officer 
 

3 
 



          The Commission convened to Closed Session at 4:15 p.m.  
 
          The Commission reconvened the Regular LAFCO Meeting at 4:35 p.m.  
 
          Supervisor Calcagno reported that Closed Session was held pursuant to Code Section 54957. 
          The Commission conducted a Public Employee Annual performance Evaluation for the LAFCO  
          position of Executive Officer.   
 
          Les Girard, LAFCO General Counsel, reported that the Commission performed the evaluation 
          of the Executive Officer.  As part of that discussion, the Commission approved an Amendment to  
          the Executive Officer’s Contract of a pay raise of 3.25%, to be scheduled for adoption in a future  
          open session.    
    
       Adjournment to the Next Meeting 
      
     *The next Regular LAFCO meeting – Monday, August 25, 2014 at 4:40 p.m.   
 
        * Note: the August 25th Meeting was canceled.  The next regular LAFCO Meeting is scheduled for Monday, September 23, 2014.  
 
 
    
 
 
 

 
 
 

4 
 



             

            2 
 

 

 

 

Anticipated Future Agenda Items  



 

LAFCO of Monterey County ______________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 

DATE:  September 22, 2014 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission  

FROM: Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: ANTICIPATED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 

This report is for information only. 

 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

Following are current work priorities and a partial list of items that the Commission may consider in 
coming months.  

Anticipated Agenda Items by December 2014 

1.    Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Monterey  
Regional Waste Management District (Initiated by LAFCO. Anticipated hearing in late 2014 or early 
2015). 

2.    South Monterey County Fire Protection District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and 
Annexation of 5,000+ acres in South County. (LAFCO Application No. 13-05 was filed on July 10, 2013.  
Incomplete status, pending the District-County approval of a property tax transfer agreement.  Parties are in 
discussion). 

3.     Municipal Service Review for Carmel Area Wastewater District (Study initiated by LAFCO in April 
2014). 

4.    Carmel Area Wastewater District – Sphere of Influence Amendment to include certain properties 
near the mouth of the Carmel Valley that are reasonably expected to be served by CAWD in the 
next 20 years (e.g., September Ranch, Point Lobos State Parks lands that already receive CAWD 
service by out-of-District contracts, etc.). (Initiated by LAFCO in April 2014.  SOI study will be coordinated 
with Municipal Service Review, see above. District is preparing a Sphere of Influence amendment application; 
anticipated to be received in Sept.-Oct.)    

5.  Carmel Area Wastewater District - Annexation of significant portions of the District’s existing 
(and proposed) Sphere of Influence near the mouth of the Carmel Valley.  (Application is being prepared 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 2 

1 
 

http://www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov/


Anticipated Future Agenda Items 
September 22, 2014 

by District; anticipated to be received in Sept.-Oct. This District-initiated application will not include September 
Ranch or other annexation proposals that would require extensive CEQA compliance). 

6. Santa Lucia Community Services District: Activation of a latent power (wireless broadband 
internet service). (Application was received in late August and is under review. Anticipated hearing: October) 

Anticipated Agenda Items by June 2015 

7. Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Salinas Valley Memorial 
Healthcare System (Initiated by LAFCO in June 2014).   

8.     Prepare a comprehensive set of Policies and Procedures for all LAFCO office functions, including 
human resources rules and regulations. 

9.     City of Greenfield – Potential Commercial/Industrial and Residential Annexation Proposals 
(Franscioni, Scheid, Rich, and others). (Initial preliminary discussions have been held with some of these 
owners. Anticipate annexation proposals for southern area properties by June 2015.  No timeline estimate for 
annexation of the other areas). 

10.    Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Pajaro-Sunny Mesa Community 
Services District (MSR and SOI study will be initiated by LAFCO. Will coordinate with PSMCSD on 
preparation of SOI application). 

11.    Municipal Service Review for Marina Coast Water District (Initiated by LAFCO. Administrative draft 
was prepared by LAFCO staff and reviewed with District in 2013. A MCWD ad hoc committee has met with Seaside 
County Sanitation District representatives to resolve issues regarding an appropriate boundary between the two 
districts. MCWD is currently planning an engineering study, cost analysis, and action plan for comparison with 
studies reviewed by SCSD in May 2014, and for use in coordinating with SCSD on service and boundary issues and 
preparing a Sphere of Influence application. See related Sphere of Influence amendment item below. MSR and SOI 
adoption schedule is dependent on the districts. The districts are arranging a September meeting to discuss next steps). 

12.    Municipal Service Review for the Seaside County Sanitation District (Initiated by 
LAFCO. Administrative draft MSR was prepared by LAFCO staff and reviewed with District in 2013.  The MSR and 
SOI adoption schedule is dependent on the two districts; please refer to the MCWD item above).  

13.    Marina Coast Water District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of Portions of 
the Former Fort Ord to Provide Water and Wastewater Services (to be initiated by District.  See MSR 
discussion above). 

14.    Seaside County Sanitation District – Sphere of Influence Amendment to Include Portions of the 
Former Fort Ord to Provide Wastewater Services (to be initiated by District.  See MSR discussion above). 

15.    Municipal Service Review for the City of Seaside (Will be initiated by LAFCO at such time as warranted by 
schedule for potential SOI Amendment, see description below).   

16.     City of Seaside – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of the Proposed Monterey 
Downs Project, Horse Park and Central Coast Veterans Cemetery (to be initiated by City). 

17.     Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for San Ardo Water District (to be 
initiated by LAFCO).   

18.     Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for San Lucas County Water District 
(to be initiated by LAFCO).   

19.      Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Boronda County Sanitation 
District (to be initiated by LAFCO).   

2 
 



Anticipated Future Agenda Items 
September 22, 2014 

20.      Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Monterey County Regional 
Sanitation District, a dependent district of the Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control 
Agency (to be initiated by LAFCO).   

21.      Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for Monterey Peninsula Water 
Management District (to be initiated by LAFCO).   

22.      Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update for City of Soledad (will be initiated by 
LAFCO, if determined necessary depending on the scope of subareas under consideration, below). 

23.      City of Soledad – Sphere of Influence Amendment and Annexation of Miravale IIB Subdivision. 
Additional potential inclusions: Existing 10-Unit residential development near Gabilan Drive, 
Front Street freeway interchange safety improvements, 4.35-acre expansion area near the “Soledad 
Entry Commercial Annexation,” Metz Road bypass, Los Coches Adobe vicinity; possibly others. 
(to be initiated by City). 

 
Anticipated Agenda Items with No Timeline Estimate 

24.      City of Marina – Annexation of portions of the former Fort Ord within the City’s existing Sphere 
of Influence. 

25.      County Service Area 15 (Serra Village/Toro Park) – Possible reorganization of government   
structure and services. 

26.      Soledad Community Health Care District – Comprehensive Sphere of Influence Amendment 
and Annexation. May include a Municipal Service Review update. 

27.      Mission Soledad Rural Fire Protection District – Sphere of Influence Amendment and 
Annexation to include build-out of the proposed Paraiso Springs Resort.  

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Kate McKenna, AICP,  
Executive Officer 

3 
 



             

            3 
 

 

 

 

Warrant Registers 



 

LAFCO of Monterey County _________________________________________________________________                     

  
   

 
 

KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
DATE:  September 22, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: LAFCO CHECK REGISTERS – May, June, July and August 2014 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission approve the check registers for May, June, July and August 2014. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Attached are the lists of LAFCO checks written in May, June July and August 2014.   
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments: Check Registers for May, June, July and August 2014  

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 3 



DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION  CHECK AMOUNT 

 DEPOSIT 

AMOUNT  ACCOUNT BALANCE 

156,823.99$               

05/05/2014 EFT CalPERS Health May 2014 Health Insurance EFT#1000420326 3,080.83                        153,743.16

05/08/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 5/2/14 Paid 5/9/14 8,129.26                        145,613.90

05/09/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,776.52                        143,837.38

05/09/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 1,924.29                        141,913.09

05/09/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 825.08                            141,088.01

05/09/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,142.10                        138,945.91

05/09/2014 4634 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 5/2/14 Paid 5/9/14 -                                  138,945.91

05/09/2014 4635 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 5/2/14 Paid 5/9/14 -                                  138,945.91

05/09/2014 4636 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 5/2/14 Paid 5/9/14 -                                  138,945.91

05/09/2014 4637 Cardmember Service CaLafco Conference, Berkeley Lodging 1,072.33                        137,873.58

05/09/2014 4638 County of Monterey, Information Technology Computer Support Services through 3/21/14 932.67                            136,940.91

05/09/2014 4639 Monterey Bay Systems Copy Machine Rental 5/8/14-8/7/14 and Usage 2/8/14-5/7/14 1,580.42                        135,360.49

05/09/2014 4640 Office of County Counsel - Co of Monterey Legal Services March 2014 414.96                            134,945.53

05/09/2014 4641 Telco Automation, Inc. Phone system programming 147.00                            134,798.53

05/09/2014 4642 Workin.com, Inc. Job Placement Advertising 289.10                            134,509.43

05/22/2014 QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 5/3/14-5/16/14 Paid 5/23/14 10,525.24                      123,984.19

05/23/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,745.36                        122,238.83

05/23/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement 1,924.29                        120,314.54

05/23/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 1,011.22                        119,303.32

05/23/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,669.06                        116,634.26

05/23/2014 4643 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 5/3/14-5/16/14 Paid 5/23/14 -                                  116,634.26

05/23/2014 4644 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 5/3/14-5/16/14 Paid 5/23/14 -                                  116,634.26

05/23/2014 4645 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 5/3/14-5/16/14 Paid 5/23/14 -                                  116,634.26

05/23/2014 4646 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 5/3/14-5/16/14 Paid 5/23/14 -                                  116,634.26

05/23/2014 4647 Bruce Lindsey Monthly Building Rent 1,926.28                        114,707.98

05/23/2014 4648 AT&T Mobility Telephone Service 4/14/14-5/13/14 73.31                              114,634.67

05/23/2014 4649 Copymat Outside Printing Customer#L01004 25.92                              114,608.75

05/23/2014 4650 County of Monterey, Information Technology Armstrong Production Services 975.00                            113,633.75

05/23/2014 4651 Pitney Bowes Postage Machine Refill 716.00                            112,917.75

05/23/2014 4652 Principal Life June 2014 Benefits: LTD,ADD,STD,Life 353.82                            112,563.93

05/23/2014 4653 The Monterey County Herald Recruitment Advertising 1,007.28                        111,556.65

05/23/2014 4654 United Group Insurance Trust June 2014 Dental $321.41;Vision $36.84 358.25                            111,198.40

05/23/2014 4655 Cash Replenish Petty Cash 87.88                              111,110.52

05/23/2014 4656 Gail Lawrence Supplies Reimbursement 130.48                            110,980.04

45,843.95$                    -$                      

110,980.04$               Ending Balance 5/31/14

LAFCO

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY

WARRANT REGISTER

FOR MAY 2014

Beginning Balance  5/1/14

1 of 1



DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION  CHECK AMOUNT 

 DEPOSIT 

AMOUNT  ACCOUNT BALANCE 

110,980.04$                

06/03/2014 EFT CalPERS Health June 2014 Health Insurance EFT#1000429320 3,080.83 107,899.21

06/05/2014 QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 5/30/14 Paid 6/6/14 9,009.76 98,889.45

06/06/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,719.40 97,170.05

06/06/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement 1,924.29 95,245.76

06/06/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 850.64 94,395.12

06/06/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,269.80 92,125.32

06/06/2014 4657 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 5/30/14 Paid 6/6/14 92,125.32

06/06/2014 4658 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 5/30/14 Paid 6/6/14 92,125.32

06/06/2014 4659 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 5/30/14 Paid 6/6/14 92,125.32

06/06/2014 4660 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 5/30/14 Paid 6/6/14 92,125.32

06/06/2014 4661 AT&T Telephone Service from 4/12/14-5/11/14 146.02 91,979.30

06/06/2014 4662 Copymat Outside Printing Customer#L01004 13.91 91,965.39

06/06/2014 4663 County of Monterey, Information Technology Dept 812 Computer Support Services through 4/18/14 782.67 91,182.72

06/06/2014 4664 Hayashi & Wayland, LLP Accounting Services #72520 3,000.00 88,182.72

06/06/2014 4665 IBM Corporation Customer #1882791-Z1 171.16 88,011.56

06/06/2014 4666 Office of County Counsel - Co of Monterey Legal Services April 2014 207.48 87,804.08

06/06/2014 4667 Pitney Bowes Office Supplies 66.09 87,737.99

06/06/2014 4668 Quality Water Enterprises, Inc. Bottled Water Usage 19.46 87,718.53

06/06/2014 4669 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma for W/E 4/20/14-5/11/14 837.77 86,880.76

06/06/2014 4670 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 229.85 86,650.91

06/06/2014 4671 SDRMA 2014-2015 1st Quarter W/C Premium (July-Sept) 388.00 86,262.91

06/06/2014 4672 SDRMA 2014-2015 Property/Liability Package 5,067.54 81,195.37

06/19/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 6/13/14 Paid 6/20/14 9,151.86 72,043.51

06/20/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,747.96 70,295.55

06/20/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement 1,924.29 68,371.26

06/20/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 781.58 67,589.68

06/20/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,085.60 65,504.08

06/20/2014 4673 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 6/13/14 Paid 6/20/14 65,504.08

06/20/2014 4674 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 6/13/14 Paid 6/20/14 65,504.08

06/20/2014 4675 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 6/13/14 Paid 6/20/14 65,504.08

06/20/2014 4676 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 6/13/14 Paid 6/20/14 65,504.08

06/20/2014 4677 APA APA Membership for Kate McKenna 7/1/14-6/30/15 718.00 64,786.08

06/20/2014 4678 AT&T Telephone Service from 45/12/14-6/11/14 145.37 64,640.71

06/20/2014 4679 County of Monterey,RMA-Dept Public Works Express Mail Charges through April 2014 686.25 63,954.46

06/20/2014 4680 Hayashi & Wayland, LLP Accounting Services #72520 3,000.00 60,954.46

06/20/2014 4681 Magellan Behavioral Health EAP Insurance July 14-Sept 14 80.40 60,874.06

06/20/2014 4682 Monterey County Resource Mgmt Agency GIS Mapping Services 1,558.00 59,316.06

06/20/2014 4683 Office of County Counsel - Co of Monterey Legal Services May 2014 137.45 59,178.61

LAFCO

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY

WARRANT REGISTER

FOR JUNE 2014

Beginning Balance  6/1/14

1 of 2



DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION  CHECK AMOUNT 

 DEPOSIT 

AMOUNT  ACCOUNT BALANCE 

LAFCO

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY

WARRANT REGISTER

FOR JUNE 2014

Beginning Balance  6/1/1406/20/2014 4684 Pitney Bowes Mailing System Rental 158.77 59,019.84

06/20/2014 4685 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 217.22 58,802.62

06/20/2014 4686 The Monterey County Herald Recruitment Advertising 734.16 58,068.46

06/20/2014 4687 United Group Insurance Trust July 2014 Dental $321.41;Vision $36.84 358.25 57,710.21

06/20/2014 4688 County of Monterey, Information Technology Armstrong Production Services 12/2, 2/24, 4/28 975.00 56,735.21

06/20/2014 4689 County of Monterey, Information Technology Dept 812 Computer Support Services through 5/30/14 3,054.67 53,680.54

06/20/2014 4690 Bruce Lindsey July 2014 Building Rent 1,926.28 51,754.26

59,225.78$                     -$                       

51,754.26$                  Ending Balance 6/30/14

2 of 2



1 of 1

DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION  CHECK AMOUNT 
 DEPOSIT 
AMOUNT  ACCOUNT BALANCE 

51,754.26$                  

07/02/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 6/27/14 Paid 7/3/14 9,387.67$                       42,366.59
07/02/2014 EFT County of Monterey Funds Transfer 150,000.00$         192,366.59
07/03/2014 EFT CalPERS Health July 2014 Health Insurance EFT#1000429320 3,080.83 189,285.76
07/03/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 1,992.74 187,293.02
07/03/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,818.04 185,474.98
07/03/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 848.11 184,626.87
07/03/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,328.88 182,297.99
07/03/2014 EFT EDD Quarter 2 SUI and ETT Payroll Tax Deposits 135.99 182,162.00
07/03/2014 4691 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 6/27/14 Paid 7/3/14 0.00 182,162.00
07/03/2014 4692 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 6/27/14 Paid 7/3/14 0.00 182,162.00
07/03/2014 4693 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 6/27/14 Paid 7/3/14 0.00 182,162.00
07/03/2014 4694 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 6/27/14 Paid 7/3/14 0.00 182,162.00
07/03/2014 4695 CALAFCO CaLafco 2014-2015 Member Dues 3,158.00 179,004.00
07/03/2014 4696 Copymat Outside Printing Customer#L01004 402.85 178,601.15
07/03/2014 4697 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma from 5/12/14-6/22/14 1,698.45 176,902.70
07/03/2014 4698 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 246.10 176,656.60
07/03/2014 4699 Thom  McCue Mileage Reimbursement 4/1-6/30 24.64 176,631.96
07/16/2014 EFT AT&T Mobility Telephone Service 5/14/14-6/13/14 178.96 176,453.00
07/17/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 7/11/14 Paid 7/18/14 8,175.70 168,277.30
07/18/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,632.18 166,645.12
07/18/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 1,835.28 164,809.84
07/18/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 586.86 164,222.98
07/18/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax deposit 1,825.56 162,397.42
07/18/2014 4700 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 7/11/14 Paid 7/18/14 0.00 162,397.42
07/18/2014 4701 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 7/11/14 Paid 7/18/14 0.00 162,397.42
07/18/2014 4702 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 7/11/14 Paid 7/18/14 0.00 162,397.42
07/18/2014 4703 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 7/11/14 Paid 7/18/14 0.00 162,397.42
07/18/2014 4704 CP&DR 1 Year Subscription 238.00 162,159.42
07/18/2014 4705 Hardee Investigations Background Checks for New Hires 460.00 161,699.42
07/18/2014 4706 Office of County Counsel - Co of Monterey Legal Services June 2014 402.86 161,296.56
07/18/2014 4707 Principal Life July 2014 Benefits: LTD,ADD,STD,Life 383.40 160,913.16
07/18/2014 4708 Quality Water Enterprises, Inc. Bottled Water 19.46 160,893.70
07/18/2014 4709 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 315.34 160,578.36
07/18/2014 4710 Sunrise Express Binder Package Deliveries 212.58 160,365.78
07/25/2014 4715 Bruce Lindsey Monthly Building Rent 1,926.28 158,439.50
07/25/2014 4716 AT&T Telephone Service from 6/12/14-7/11/14 149.36 158,290.14
07/25/2014 4717 Hayashi & Wayland, LLP Accounting Services #72520 3,000.00 155,290.14
07/25/2014 4718 Principal Life August 2014 Benefits: LTD,ADD,STD,Life 358.75 154,931.39
07/25/2014 4719 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 156.70 154,774.69
07/25/2014 4720 United Group Insurance Trust August 2014 Dental $321.41;Vision $36.84 358.25 154,416.44
07/31/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,737.90 152,678.54
07/31/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 2,008.73 150,669.81
07/31/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 7/25/14 Paid 8/1/14 9,041.67 141,628.14

141,628.14
60,126.12$                     150,000.00$         

141,628.14$                Ending Balance 7/31/14

LAFCO
LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY
WARRANT REGISTER

FOR JULY 2014

Beginning Balance  7/1/14



DATE CK#  NAME  DESCRIPTION  CHECK AMOUNT 

 DEPOSIT 

AMOUNT  ACCOUNT BALANCE 

141,628.14$               

08/01/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 768.85                     140,859.29

08/01/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,252.56 138,606.73

08/01/2014 4711 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 7/25/14 Paid 8/1/14 0.00 138,606.73

08/01/2014 4712 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 7/25/14 Paid 8/1/14 0.00 138,606.73

08/01/2014 4713 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 7/25/14 Paid 8/1/14 0.00 138,606.73

08/01/2014 4714 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 7/25/14 Paid 8/1/14 0.00 138,606.73

08/04/2014 EFT CalPERS Health August 2014 Health Insurance EFT#1000451693 3,081.22 135,525.51

08/04/2014 EFT Cardmember Service Laptop; Computer Accessories; Office Supplies 4,156.49 131,369.02

08/07/2014 DEP City of Gonzalez Filing Fee for Influence Amendment Lafco File No. 14-03 3,750.00 135,119.02

08/07/2014 4721 County of Monterey, Information Technology Dept 812 Computer Support Services through 6/30/14 750.67 134,368.35

08/07/2014 4722 Earth Design, Inc. Assistance with 6/20/14 Interview Process 520.00 133,848.35

08/07/2014 4723 IBM Corporation Leased Computers for Lafco Staff 8/1/14-8/31/14 171.16 133,677.19

08/07/2014 4724 Quality Water Enterprises, Inc. Water Dispenser Rental 8/1/14-8/31/14 12.00 133,665.19

08/07/2014 4725 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma for W/E 6/29/14-7/30/14 1,685.42 131,979.77

08/07/2014 4726 Staples Advantage Office Supplies 21.60 131,958.17

08/14/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 8/8/14 Paid 8/15/14 9,158.89 122,799.28

08/15/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,765.02 121,034.26

08/15/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 2,022.09 119,012.17

08/15/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 709.82 118,302.35

08/15/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,067.04 116,235.31

08/15/2014 4727 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 8/8/14 Paid 8/15/14 0.00 116,235.31

08/15/2014 4728 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 8/8/14 Paid 8/15/14 0.00 116,235.31

08/15/2014 4729 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 8/8/14 Paid 8/15/14 0.00 116,235.31

08/15/2014 4730 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 8/8/14 Paid 8/15/14 0.00 116,235.31

08/15/2014 4731 MBS Business Systems Copier Usage 552.48 115,682.83

08/15/2014 4732 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma for W/E 8/6/14 256.00 115,426.83

08/28/2014 EFT QuickBooks Payroll Service For Payroll Period Ending 8/22/14 Paid 8/31/14 9,151.98 106,274.85

08/29/2014 EFT CalPERS 457 Program CalPers 457 Deferred Compensation Contribution 1,763.14 104,511.71

08/29/2014 EFT CalPERS Retirement CalPers Retirement Contribution 2,015.40 102,496.31

08/29/2014 EFT EDD State Payroll Tax Deposit 707.34 101,788.97

08/29/2014 EFT EFTPS Federal Payroll Tax Deposit 2,064.56 99,724.41

08/29/2014 4733 Darren J McBain For Payroll Period Ending 8/22/14 Paid 8/31/14 0.00 99,724.41

08/29/2014 4734 Gail M Lawrence For Payroll Period Ending 8/22/14 Paid 8/31/14 0.00 99,724.41

08/29/2014 4735 Kathryn M. McKenna For Payroll Period Ending 8/22/14 Paid 8/31/14 0.00 99,724.41

08/29/2014 4736 Thomas A. McCue For Payroll Period Ending 8/22/14 Paid 8/31/14 0.00 99,724.41

08/29/2014 4737 AT&T Telephone Service from 7/12/14-8/11/14 147.91 99,576.50

08/29/2014 4738 AT&T Mobility Telephone Service 7/14/14-8/13/14 1,231.94 98,344.56

08/29/2014 4739 Hayashi & Wayland, LLP Accounting Services #72520 3,000.00 95,344.56

08/29/2014 4740 MBS Business Systems Printer Rental 947.10 94,397.46

08/29/2014 4741 Principal Life September 2014 Benefits: LTD,ADD,STD,Life 358.75 94,038.71

08/29/2014 4742 Quality Water Enterprises, Inc. Water Dispenser Rental 9/1/14-9/30/14 19.46 94,019.25

08/29/2014 4743 SlingShot Connections Temp Services: Jimenez, Alma for W/E 8/10 & 8/27 336.00 93,683.25

08/29/2014 4744 United Group Insurance Trust September 2014 Dental $321.41;Vision $36.84 358.25 93,325.00

08/29/2014 4745 Bruce Lindsey Monthly Building Rent 1,926.28 91,398.72

53,979.42$                    3,750.00$             

91,398.72$                 Ending Balance 8/31/14

LAFCO

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

OF MONTEREY COUNTY

WARRANT REGISTER

FOR AUGUST 2014

Beginning Balance  8/1/14

1 of 1



             

            4 
 

 

 

 

Amendment No. 5 

Executive Officer Employment Agreement 

 





LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 5 
TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 
This Amendment No. 5 to Employment Agreement is made and entered into between the Local 
Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County, a state-mandated agency of the State of 
California (hereinafter “LAFCO”) and Kathryn McKenna, an individual (hereinafter “Ms. 
McKenna”). 
 
WHEREAS, LAFCO and Ms. McKenna heretofore entered into an Employment Agreement 
executed in May, 2004 for the period June 1, 2004 through June 30, 2007 to provide Executive 
Officer services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the LAFCO and Ms. McKenna subsequently agreed to four amendments as 
compiled in a restated Employment Agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”) dated July 1, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, LAFCO and Ms. McKenna desire to further amend the salary provisions of the 
Agreement;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained herein 
and in the Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

 
A. Section 4 of the Agreement is amended as follows: 
 

4. Compensation.   As consideration for all services to be rendered by Ms. 
McKenna pursuant hereto, LAFCO shall compensate Ms. McKenna as 
follows: 

 
 A. … 
 
 For the period July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015, LAFCO shall pay Ms. 

McKenna the basic salary of One Hundred Sixty One Seven 
Thousand, Nine One Hundred and Five Sixty Seven Dollars 
($161,905 167,167). 

 
 For the period July 1, 2015 - June 30, 2018, LAFCO shall pay Ms. 

McKenna the basic salary of One Hundred Sixty Seventy Six Two 
Thousand, Seven  One Hundred Sixty  Eighty  Two Dollars 
($166,762 172,182 ).     

 
 ... 
 
 B. [No change.] 

 
Subject to the foregoing amendments, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement 
shall remain in full force and effect.  If there is any conflict or inconsistency between 

DRAFT AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 1 



provisions of this Amendment No. 5 and the Agreement, the provisions of this 
Amendment No. 5 shall control in all respects. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, LAFCO and Ms. McKenna have executed this Amendment as of 
the last date opposite the respective signatures below. 
 
 

LAFCO of Monterey County 
 

 Kate McKenna, AICP 

Approved as to Form, LAFCO General Counsel   
 
By: 

  
By: 

 
Date: 

  
Date: 

   
Approved as to Content, LAFCO Vice Chair   
 
By: 

  

 
Date: 

  

 
 
 

DRAFT AMENDMENT NO. 5 TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 2 



             

            5 
 

 

 

 

Report on CALAFCO Activities  



LAFCO of Monterey County ____________________________________________________________                     

  
 
 
 
 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 

DATE:  September 22, 2014 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission  

FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: REPORT ON ACTIVITIES OF THE CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF LOCAL 
AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSIONS (CALAFCO). 

 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 

This report is for information only. 

 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

Attached is a report from the July 2014 meeting of the CALAFCO Board of Directors, and an update on 
training, legislative, and other CALAFCO activities.  No action is required at this time.    

1. CALAFCO Quarterly Report: Please refer to the attached July 2014 report. 

2. Annual Conference: The annual CALAFCO conference, hosted by San Bernardino LAFCO, will 
be held on October 15-17 in Ontario, California. In June 2014, the Commission authorized several 
representatives to attend the conference. Please refer to the attached conference program.  

3. Legislative Update: Attachment 3 is a summary of all pending legislation being tracked by 
CALAFCO, updated as of August 26. 

4. CALAFCO Achievement Award Nominations: In August, LAFCO submitted award 
nominations as directed by the Commission at the June meeting. 

 
Respectfully Submitted,  

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachments:   

1. CALAFCO Quarterly Report, July 2014  
2. 2014 Annual Conference Program 
3. Legislative Update 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 5 

1 
 



 
 

2014 Annual Conference Update 
LAFCo: The Next 50 Years. Shaping 
Communities for Tomorrow With Innovative 
Ideas Today. The Program Committee has 
been busy planning and finalizing the 
program, which is shaping up to be quite 
diverse in topics and speakers. A detailed 
program will be made available once 
finalized. Registration information and a 
summary program are available on the CALAFCO website, as 
is the hotel reservation information.  Registration is open and 
available. 

 
Sponsorship opportunities are available and sponsorship 
packets are also located on the CALAFCO website. CALAFCO is 
working with the Ontario CVB for incentives for attendees such 
as discounted Disneyland tickets, and details will be provided 
to the membership when they become available. For now, 
mark your calendars and register for the annual conference in 
Ontario on October 15 – 1, 2014.  
 
2014 CALAFCO Board Nominations and Elections 
The nomination period is open through 
September 15 for nominations for the CALAFCO 
Board of Directors. Packets were distributed to 
the membership and are available on the 
CALAFCO website.  Absentee ballot requests 
and voting delegate names are also due September 15, 
2014. 
 
2014 CALAFCO Achievement Awards   
Nominations are being accepted for the 2014 
achievement awards. Packets were distributed 
to the membership and are available on the CALAFCO 
website. Deadline to submit nominations is August 22, 2014. 
 
2014 Staff Workshop Final Report 
The CALAFCO annual Staff Workshop was 
held April 23 - 25 in Berkeley at the 
DoubleTree Berkeley Marina. The theme was 
Building Bridges to the Future: Collaboration 
and Cooperation. Final workshop reports, 
which were presented to the Board on July 11, indicate the 
workshop was a success both programmatically and 
financially. Overall the program was rated 5.3 out of 6.0. The 
workshop netted an 11.8% profit. 
 
2015 Staff Workshop Announced 
The 2015 Staff Workshop will be held in Grass Valley and 
hosted by Nevada LAFCo. The dates are April 15-17, 2015. 
 

  
 

CALAFCO U Update                        
The next CALAFCO U is set in Sacramento on August 11 and 
is LAFCOs Role in Ag Resources, Mitigation & Preservation. 
The session is open to all LAFCo staff, commissioners, 
associate members, and anyone whose agency deals with Ag 
preservation and LAFCos. Registration is available through 
the CALAFCO website. 

 

 
 
 

There is one remaining CALAFCO U session in 2014 which 
will also be held in Sacramento. Mark your calendars for 
December 8 for Legal Interpretations of C-K-H. 

 
 

CALAFCO Board Actions 
During their regular meeting on July 11, the Board 
addressed several administrative issues including: 

 Accepted the 4th quarter financial reports and FY 
2013-2014 final close-out budget (which showed a 
net savings of $14,083 for the year, and a carry-over 
into FY 14-15 of $40,234); 

 Approved the annual contract for CPA Services with 
Alta Mesa Group; 

 Heard reports from the Achievement Awards 
Committee, Nomination Committee, and Conference 
Committee;  

 Received staff’s recommendation to reduce the 
number of standard CALAFCO U sessions offered 
annually to two (which will be supplemented on an 
as-needed basis) and directed staff to amend the 
Policy and Strategic Plan accordingly; 

 Received a comprehensive legislative update, 
including hearing from several guest speakers on 
groundwater management (see notes below under 
AB 1739 and SB 1168);  

 Approved the use of  a small amount of contingency 
funds for one-time equipment purchases, an intern 
to scan CALAFCO records, and for legal assistance; 
and 

 Amended a number of existing CALAFCO Policies 
including: 

o Conference and workshop guest 
registrations costs and credit carry-overs 
(the latter not being effective until 1-1-15); 

o CALAFCO U Policy (as previously noted 
herein); 

o Policy on reserve fund balance; 
o Legislative Committee membership. 

 
A full report detailing all of the policy changes will be 
provided to the membership in early August. 
 
Legislative Update 
The Legislative Committee met in May and has another 
meeting scheduled July 25th. A great deal of time has been 
spent on addressing the sustainable groundwater 
management legislation, and several unexpected gut and 
amend bills. The legislature is currently in summer recess 
set to return August 4. Bills were being pushed through 
policy committees prior to recess to meet deadlines. Some 
of the hot bills CALAFCO has been tracking and working 
extensively on are noted below (a full report is available on 
the CALAFCO website and is updated daily): 

• AB 1527 (Perea) CALAFCO Support. Was amended 
to remove all of CALAFCO’s concerns, and during 
its last committee hearing was gut and amended 
to address several of the committee’s concerns.  

NNeewwss  ffrroomm  tthhee  BBooaarrdd  ooff  DDiirreeccttoorrss  

CCAALLAAFFCCOO  QQUUAARRTTEERRLLYY    JJuullyy  22001144 



• AB 2762, CALAFCO Sponsor. CALAFCO’s annual 
Omnibus bill, was signed by the Governor on July 9.  

• SB 614 (Wolk) Watch With Concerns. Another 
gut/amend undertaken by the League to amend CKH 
and the Rev & Tax code relating to the annexation of 
Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities (DUCs). 
CALAFCO worked closely with the Senator’s staff for a 
month on making amendments that will eliminate 
much of CALAFCO’s concerns. As recently as June 10 
the final set of amendments were agreed upon and 
are in Leg Counsel for formal write-up. The bill will 
likely be amended on the Assembly floor in August. 

• AB 1739 (Dickinson) and SB 1168 (Pavley) CALAFCO 
Watch With Concerns. These are the two pieces of 
groundwater management legislation. Additionally the 
Governor has published his own legislative proposal 
on the matter. CALAFCO has attended a number of 
stakeholder meetings and several large legislative 
hearings on these bills. CALAFCO expressed concerns 
on both bills through formal letters and during 
hearings. Although the legislature is in recess during 
July, stakeholder meetings continue on this subject 
with the end goal of the two authors and governor to 
get one bill that will address the intent of all three 
current proposals and meet the needs of 
stakeholders. During the 11 July Board meeting, the 
Board heard from Mr. Les Spahnn, Legislative Director 
for Assemblymember Dickinson; Mr. Ryan Bezerra, 
attorney for a number of water agencies and one of 
the attorneys who wrote the current version of AB 
1739; and Mr. Matt Hurley, ACWA Board member and 
a member of the ACWA groundwater management 
task force. CALAFCO will continue to keep the Board 
and Legislative Committee involved in this important 
policy discussion. A session on groundwater 
management is scheduled for the annual conference 
in Ontario. 

 
Other bills of note being tracked by CALAFCO include: 

• AB 1521 (Fox) CALAFCO Support 
• AB 1729 (Logue) CALAFCO Support 
• AB 2156 (Achadjian) Signed by Governor 
• SB 69 (Roth) CALAFCO Support 

 
 

 



 
 

Announcing… 

Hosted by San Bernardino LAFCo 

October 15–17, 2014  
At the DoubleTree by Hilton Hotel Ontario Airport, Ontario, CA 

             Content Rich Sessions Include: 
        Wednesday General Sessions 

 Walking With Dinosaurs 
With a collective century of LAFCo experience, our speakers will present informed 
perspectives on the evolution of laws impacting boundary regulation and LAFCO’s changing 
roles since the early 1960s.  

 Cyber Security: Are You and Your Public Agency Adequately Protected? 
Hear from a security expert on the creative ways hackers are infiltrating systems and the 
latest best practices to keep your agency secure. 

 Groundwater Basins: Governance Today and in the Future 
One of the hottest issues in the State today, this diverse panel will discuss basin governance, 
State legislative actions, and present best practices. 

 Beer & Wine Reception  
Thursday Morning General & Breakout Sessions 

 Regional Caucus Meetings & Elections 
 CALAFCO Annual Business Meeting 
 Regional Roundtables, Legal Counsel & Associate Member Roundtables 
 Luncheon Keynote Speaker, Randall W. Lewis 

Thursday Afternoon Breakout Sessions 
 Water Supply & Analysis: Policies and Practices  

This interactive session will explore how state law, unique local conditions, management 
practices, and LAFCO policies affect LAFCO decisions. 

 Lead by Design. Create Your Future Using Next Generation Technology Today 
Feel like you just can’t keep up with the fast-paced world of technology? This session puts 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) in perspective and offers best practices and the latest 
trends in GIS. 

 Growing Trends in Collaborative Service Delivery 
More and more agencies are looking to shared services to gain efficiencies. This session 
highlights best practices and strategies of shared services. 

 Do We Really Need to Protect Our Mineral Resources? 
Although California is rich with mineral resources, their extraction often elicits community 
opposition.  Panelists will address the legitimate need for protection of mineral resources, 
the connection to preserving open space, and LAFCo’s role in mineral resource regulation. 

 LAFCos and Joint Power Authorities: Defining a Relationship That Makes Sense Post 
C-K-H. 

This interactive session will explore the relationship between these entities and potential 
legislation on strengthening the connection. 

 Performance Evaluations: Do They Help or Hinder Performance? 
Without a doubt, performance evaluations create anxiety for everyone involved. Hear from 
HR professionals about creative and inclusive ways to bring archaic employee review 
processes up to date. 

 Dinner and Annual CALAFCO Awards Ceremony 
Friday Morning General & Breakout Sessions 

 CALAFCO Board of Directors Meeting 
 Connecting LAFCOs and COGs For Mutual Benefit 

Speakers from northern and southern area COGs will address the relationship between them 
and how to strengthen that linkage for mutual benefit. 

 How to Effectively Engage the Public in LAFCo Actions 
Tired of the same old public hearings as a way to hear from your community? Come hear 
about creative and inclusive methods of engaging the public for maximum benefit. 

 SOIs – They Really Aren’t That Scary 
Hear from LAFCO staff and Commissioners about how to use Spheres effectively and 
collaboratively with all stakeholders relative to present and future service needs and 
delivery. 

 CALAFCO Legislative Update 
Join us as we recap the 2014 legislative year and highlight adopted legislation that impacts 
LAFCos. We will also provide a sneak peak at potential legislation CALAFCO is considering for 
2015-16.                    Note: Sessions are tentative and subject to change 

 

Invaluable Networking Opportunities  
 Regional Roundtables on trending 

LAFCo issues 
 Counsel and Associate Member 

roundtables 
 8th CALAFCO Beer & Wine 

Competition and Reception 
 Networking breakfasts 
 Receptions 

Special Highlights 

 
Mobile Workshop 

Visit the Frontier Project (LEED designed 
facility), followed by a tour and tasting at 
the Joseph Filippi Winery, concluding with 

lunch at the historic Magic Lamp Inn  
on Route 66. 

Wednesday from  
8:00 a.m. to 12:45 p.m. 

 
 

LAFCo 101: Understanding &  
Applying the Basics 

This diverse panel of experts will discuss 
LAFCo’s regulation of cities and special 

districts and answer your questions about 
administering LAFCo law. 

Wednesday from  
10: 00 a.m. to Noon 

 
 

Luncheon Keynote 
Featuring  

Randall W. Lewis,  
Exec. VP of Lewis Group of Companies 

Thursday Luncheon 
 
 

8th Annual Beer & Wine Competition  
 

 

Make your reservations now at the 
DoubleTree by Hilton at the CALAFCO 
special rate of $99. Find the link at 
www.calafco.org. 

DoubleTree by Hilton, Ontario, CA 



CALAFCO Legislative Update as of August 26, 2014 
 
Below is a summary update of the top priority bills being tracked by 
CALAFCO. For updates on all of the bills being tracked, go to the CALAFCO 
website and see the daily updates in the legislative section. A copy of that 
report as of this morning is also included in this report. 
 
 
Legislative Deadlines: 
 
August 31 – last day for each house to pass bills and the start of final 
recess. 
 
 
AB 2762 (ALGC – Omnibus) – CALAFCO Sponsor and Support 
Chaptered. 
 
AB 2156 (Achadjian) CALAFCO Support 
Chaptered. 
Writes Joint Power Authorities into CKH through definition of both, and as 
entities from which the LAFCo is authorized to request information for 
studies, and requires the JPA to respond to the request for information. 
 
AB 1521 (last amended 8/4/14) (Fox) CALAFCO Support 
Enrollment, shortly to be presented to Governor for signature. ASKING FOR 
LETTERS FROM LAFCOS REQUESTING GOVERNOR SIGNATURE.  
This bill reinstates the VLF payment (through ERAF) and changes the way 
that the growth in the VLF adjustment amount (property tax in lieu of VLF) is 
calculated starting in FY 2014-15 to include the growth of assessed 
valuation, including in an annexed area, from FY 2004-05 to FY 2014-15. 
Beginning in FY 2015-16, the VLF adjustment amount would be the 
jurisdiction's annual change in the assessed valuation. This bill has been 
marked as an urgency bill to take effect immediately. 
 
SB 69 (last amended 8/18/14) (Roth) CALAFCO Support 
Enrolled, shortly to be presented to Governor for signature. ASKING FOR 
LETTERS FROM LAFCOS REQUESTING GOVERNOR SIGNATURE.  
The bill calls for reinstatement of the VLF through ERAF for cities that 
incorporated between January 1, 2004 and January 1, 2012. There are no 
provisions for back payments for lost revenue, but the bill does reinstate 
future payments beginning in the 2014/15 year for cities that incorporated 
between 1-1-2004 and 1-1-2012. 
 
 

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/asm/ab_2751-2800/ab_2762_bill_20140709_chaptered.pdf
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/asm/ab_2151-2200/ab_2156_bill_20140604_chaptered.pdf
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/asm/ab_1501-1550/ab_1521_bill_20140804_amended_sen_v97.pdf
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_0051-0100/sb_69_bill_20140825_enrolled.pdf


 
AB 1527 (last amended 8/20/14) (Perea) CALAFCO Support 
On Assembly floor for concurrence in Senate amendments. Set for passage 
8/26/14. Once done, will go to enrollment and you will receive request for 
letter requesting Governor signature. 
Gut and amended on June 26 and substantially amended again on Aug. 20.  
As amended, this bill requires the State Water Resources Control Board to 
provide incentives for the consolidation of public water systems based on 
LAFCo studies. It further requires the Board to adopt a policy handbook. 
Once done, this newly added provision will be repealed. The bill has 
undergone a number of substantial amendments, consequently eliminating 
the provision that LAFCos be added to the list of eligible entities for receiving 
grant funding from the Strategic Growth Council. However it still 
acknowledges the importance and usefulness of Municipal Service Reviews at 
the state level by requiring the Board to use that data in their processes of 
consolidation incentives. 
 
 
SB 614  (last amended 8/18/14) (Wolk) CALAFCO Support 
Enrolled, shortly to be presented to Governor for signature.  
As amended, the bill is intended to provide an incentive to cities to annex 
disadvantaged unincorporated communities by creating an option for a 
funding mechanism using a property tax sharing agreement by affected 
entities (to share the 1% tax dollars) and ensuing tax increment. A special 
district would be created to act as the vehicle for that funding. The bill allows 
LAFCo to consider, as part of the application, the formation of a new district 
or the reorganization of an existing district, but only if all of the affected 
agencies are in agreement. Further, the bill allows a consenting local agency 
to advance funds to the special district for the sole purposes outlined in the 
annexation development plan (for specific infrastructure upgrades). There is 
a ten year sunset on the provisions created by this bill to January 1, 2025. 
 
CALAFCO spent over two months working closely with Senator Wolk’s staff 
and the staff of the Senate Governance & Finance committee on 
amendments to the bill. All of the originally stated concerns have been 
eliminated with the August 18th amendments. 
 
AB 1739 and SB 1168 – Sustainable Groundwater Agencies (SGAs) 
 
Summary: 
 
The August 18, 2014 amendments to this bill and AB 1739 divided the 
integrated statute into two pieces that must be enacted together and 
included many of the stakeholder-suggested refinements.  The August 22, 

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/asm/ab_1501-1550/ab_1527_bill_20140820_amended_sen_v94.pdf
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_0601-0650/sb_614_bill_20140818_amended_asm_v94.pdf


2014, amendments made mostly technical and clarifying changes as well as 
additional stakeholder refinements.  SB 1168 contains:  the general policy of 
the State regarding sustainable groundwater management; the Act's general 
provisions, including phased requirements for high and medium priority 
basins to manage sustainably, depending on whether a critical condition of 
overdraft exists; basin boundary adjustment language; requirements and 
authorities for establishing Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSA); 
powers and authorities of GSAs; and, required Groundwater Sustainability 
Plan (GSP) components.  AB 1739 includes provisions related to coordination 
between local land use agencies and GSAs as well as those provisions of the 
Act regarding: DWR technical assistance; GSA financial authorities; GSA 
enforcement powers; State evaluation and assessment of GSPs; and, State 
intervention should the requirements of the statute not be met, including 
authority for the State Water Board to require reporting of groundwater 
withdrawals and charge fees for its interim management activities.  In many 
respects, SB 1168 contains the actions related to establishing GSAs and 
planning GSPs while AB 1739 contains most of the complimentary 
implementation tools and enforcement authorities, both State and local. 
 
The coordination of overlapping basins and subbasins will be done at the 
local level.  It is the intent of the legislature to keep as much authority at 
the local level as possible. 
 
CALAFCO’s concerns regarding the required expedited process of GSA 
formation has been addressed with the removal of LAFCo in the formation 
process. In a later set of amendments, it was requested that LAFCo be 
included as one of the entities to be notified upon the formation of a GSA. 
However, that request came too late in the process – it is something we 
should have asked for when we addressed our original concerns. LAFCos can 
request to be included on the list of recipients of any notification relating to 
the formation of a GSA and creation of a GSP. CALAFCO has been informed 
no further amendments will be considered for either bill. However, we have 
also learned that it is likely clean-up legislation will be introduced next year. 
 
AB 1739 (last amended 8/22/14) (Dickinson) CALAFCO Watch  
On the floor of the Senate for third reading and passage on 8/26. Then off to 
Enrollment and to the Governor for signature. 
In addition to the summary above, AB 1739: 

• Requires consideration of GSAs and GSPs in the update of General 
Plans; 

• Requires the DWR to adopt a fee schedule for the GSA to recoup costs; 
• Allows DWR or GSA to provide technical assistance to entities that 

extract or use groundwater to promote water conservation; 
• Authorizes the GSA to regulate groundwater extraction; 

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/asm/ab_1701-1750/ab_1739_bill_20140822_amended_sen_v93.htm


• Requires DWR to publish a report by 12/31/16 of estimated water 
available for replenishment of groundwater; 

• Outlines the costs that can be funded with fees on the extraction of 
groundwater from the basin to the GSA; 

• Provides GSA enforcement powers;  
• Requires DWR to adopt regulations for GSP evaluation by 6/1/16; 
• Provides for reporting intervals; and 
• Provides state backstops for noncompliance. 

 
SB 1168 (last amended 8/22/14) (Pavley) CALAFCO Watch  
On the floor of the Assembly for third reading and passage on 8/26. Then off 
to Enrollment and to the Governor for signature. 
In addition to the summary above, SB 1168: 

• Requires all large and medium size basins (per Bulletin 188) to be 
managed under a GMP; 

• Requires adjudicated basins to file papers with the DWR by 1/1/16 and 
annual reports; 

• Requires DWR to adopt regulations for the boundary revision process; 
• Provides that any local agency or combination of local agencies 

overlaying a groundwater basin may form a GSA for that basin, and 
defines the necessary process for such formation; 

• Provides for Counties to have authority over white spaces; 
• Outlines the authority of a GSA; and 
• Outlines the contents of the GMP. 

 
SB 757 (last amended 8/22/14) (Berryhill) CALAFCO Watch 
In assembly rules committee likely to die there. 
Gut and amended, this bill is the vehicle for the opposition to the two main 
groundwater bills, AB 1739 and SB 1168. It takes partial language from both 
bills and introduces new and confusing definitions, reinserts some language 
that was previously rejected during the stakeholder process that was used to 
develop SB 1168 and AB 1739, and omits many of the refinements that were 
subsequently developed in that stakeholder process. Most troublesome is the 
language that requires LAFCos to expedite the formation of the special 
districts, which was ultimately removed from AB 1739. 

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_1151-1200/sb_1168_bill_20140822_amended_asm_v92.htm
http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/pub/13-14/bill/sen/sb_0751-0800/sb_757_bill_20140822_amended_asm_v97.htm


             

            6 
 

 

 

 

Proposed LAFCO Committee Assignments  



LAFCO of Monterey County _______________________________________________________________                     

  
   

 
 

 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 
DATE:  September 22, 2014 
 
TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 
 
FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 
 
SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Commission accept the Chair’s list of Committee appointments for FY 2014-
2015. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 
 
Chair Snodgrass has issued his proposed list of FY 2014-2015 Committee appointments for discussion 
and action.  The list is attached for reference. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
Attachment: 
 FY 2014-2015 Committee Appointments 

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
P.O. Box 1369                            132 W. Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
Salinas, CA 93902                                               Salinas, CA  93901 
Telephone (831) 754-5838                                 Fax (831) 754-5831 

www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 

AGENDA 
ITEM 
NO. 6 



     LAFCO of Monterey County 
 

        LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 
 
 
 

Committee Assignments 
For Fiscal Year 2014-15 

 
Proposed on September 22, 2014 

 
 

Budget and Finance Committee  
(Standing – Active) 

 
Commissioner Simón Salinas, County Member 

Commissioner Ralph Rubio, City Member 
Commissioner Graig Stephens, Special District Member 

 
 

Executive Officer Evaluation and Compensation Review Committee  
(Standing - Active) 

 
Commissioner Matt Gourley, Public Member (Alternate) 

Commissioner Steve Snodgrass, Special District Member, LAFCO Chair 
 
 

LAFCO Sphere of Influence and Annexation Policy Committee  
(Standing – Inactive) 

 
Commissioner Sherwood Darington, Public Member, LAFCO Vice Chair 

Commissioner Pete Poitras, Special District Member (Alternate) 
     Commissioner Maria Orozco, City Member 

 
 
 

Updated 9-12-14 



             

            7 
 

 

Public Hearing – City of Gonzales  



 
 

 
  

LAFCO of Monterey County _______________________________________________________________                    

 LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
                   P.O. Box 1369                         132 Gabilan Street, Suite 102 
                        Salinas, CA 93902                                             Salinas, CA 93901 
                         Telephone (831) 754-5838                            Fax (831) 754-5831         

                                                        www.monterey.lafco.ca.gov 
 
KATE McKENNA, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 

DATE:  September 22, 2014 

TO:  Chair and Members of the Formation Commission 

FROM:  Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: City of Gonzales  

a. Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study, and  

b. Proposed Sphere of Influence Amendment, Expanding the City’s Existing 
Sphere of Influence by Approximately 2,038 Acres (LAFCO File 14-03). 

 

SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS: 

It is recommended that the Commission hold a public hearing and adopt a Resolution (Attachment 1) to: 

i. Find the Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) as information collection, under Sections 
15306 and 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines; 

ii. Approve the 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales 
(Attachment 3);  

iii. Find that, pursuant to CEQA, the City of Gonzales has certified an Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) and a subsequently adopted 2014 EIR Addendum (Attachment 2) that 
adequately address the potential environmental effects of the proposed Sphere of Influence 
Amendment; and 

iv. Approve the proposed Sphere of Influence Amendment (see map, Exhibit A of Attachment 1). 
 

EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT: 

Overview  

This report presents two public hearing action items for the City of Gonzales:  (1) a LAFCO draft study 
of the City’s municipal services and boundaries, and (2) the City’s application to expand the Sphere of 
Influence by approximately 2,038 acres, consistent with the terms of a 2014 City-County Memorandum 
of Agreement (MOA). The LAFCO study provides a foundation of information and analysis in support of 
the City’s proposed Sphere of Influence amendment.  It also finds that the City-County MOA is a balance 

AGENDA 
ITEM  
NO. 7 



of public benefits and tradeoffs, and is consistent with locally adopted LAFCO policies. As such, great 
weight can be given to the MOA as the Commission considers this Sphere of Influence proposal.   

Attachment 1 is a recommended Resolution to approve the 2014 Municipal Services Review and Sphere of 
Influence Study, and to approve the City of Gonzales Sphere of Influence amendment.  Exhibit A of the 
Resolution is a map of the proposed Sphere expansion area (approximately 2,038 acres).  Attachment 2 is 
the environmental documentation for the proposed Sphere amendment. Attachment 3 is the LAFCO 
Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study.  Attachment 4 is a farmland resources map.  
Attachment 5 is the full text of the City-County Memorandum of Agreement.   

2010 General Plan, 2014 City-County Memorandum of Agreement, and 2014 Sphere of Influence of 
Amendment Proposal 

In 2010, the City of Gonzales adopted a comprehensive General Plan update that focuses substantial 
future urban development to the east of Highway 101, thereby enabling preservation of the majority of the 
most productive agricultural soils near the City (see Attachment 4 of this report for a map of farmland 
resources in the Gonzales area).  In addition to conserving and protecting agriculture and open space 
resources, the General Plan contains policy and implementation programs to guide land use development 
projects, maintain the safety and welfare of Gonzales citizens, guide the cost effective and efficient 
delivery of public infrastructure and services, and enhance community sustainability efforts.  

In March and April 2014, in fulfillment of State law requirements for a City-County consultation process 
prior to a City’s application for a Sphere of Influence amendment, the County of Monterey and the City 
executed a model Memorandum of Agreement in support of implementing the City’s adopted 2010 
General Plan. The MOA’s fundamental objective is to balance the preservation of prime agricultural lands 
with the need for orderly City growth.  It delineates a large portion of the General Planning area as the 
City’s proposed Sphere of Influence.  However, it also provides for permanent agricultural edges along 
the City’s north, south and west edges, growing the City toward the foothills and protecting the highest-
quality agricultural lands in lower-lying areas.  As part of the Agreement, the City will amend its General 
Plan to remove previously planned urban land uses south at the City’s southern edge. Gonzales will also 
establish a comprehensive mitigation program for the loss of agricultural lands.  These measures will be 
implemented as part of Specific Plan processes, and detailed in future annexation applications to 
LAFCO.  The MOA identifies compact, sustainable goals for future neighborhoods, and provides for 
truck routes, a Traffic Impact Fee Program, and requiring the accrual of property tax benefits to the 
County for any City annexations that are inconsistent with the MOA.  Please see the full MOA text in 
Attachment 5.     

State law requires that the Commission give great weight to a City-County MOA, to the extent that the 
Agreement is consistent with local LAFCO policies. A consistency analysis was done as part of the 
LAFCO study, as discussed below. 

In July 2014, the City of Gonzales filed a proposal for a 2,038-acre expansion of its Sphere of Influence, 
consistent with the terms of the approved MOA.  A map of the proposed Sphere expansion is shown in 
Exhibit A of Attachment 1.  The proposal is analyzed in the LAFCO study, discussed below. 

2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study 

LAFCO staff prepared the Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of 
Gonzales, as a priority task of the Commission’s adopted annual work program.  It was prepared as part 
of the Commission’s statutory requirement to periodically review the services and boundaries of all cities 
and special districts in Monterey County. The study anticipated and is a companion to the City-County 
Memorandum of Agreement and the City’s Sphere of Influence amendment application. 

The MOA’s provisions and commitments, and its consistency with applicable laws and LAFCO policies, 
are analyzed in the LAFCO study (see Attachment 3).  As discussed below, the study concludes that this 

 
 

2 



consistency finding can be made due to a balance of important public tradeoffs and benefits that the 
MOA will accomplish over time.  Accordingly, the MOA provides a strong basis for delineating a large 
portion of the Gonzales General Planning area as the City’s Sphere of Influence.  

The LAFCO study also discusses the City’s growth plans, capability and capacity to provide the 
municipal services and infrastructure necessary to support current and future residential and non-
residential areas of the City.  In addition, it discusses the City’s growth relative to official projections 
provided by the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG). 

On balance, the LAFCO study concludes that the City of Gonzales’ Sphere of Influence proposal is 
reasonable in the comprehensive context of the City-County MOA, the adopted General Plan policies, 
and the certified EIR. It also concludes that the Sphere proposal is consistent with AMBAG growth 
projections, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act and the Commission’s locally adopted policies.  

Effects of the Sphere of Influence Amendment, if Approved by LAFCO  

If the City’s Sphere of Influence Amendment proposal is approved, areas within the approved Sphere will 
be eligible for annexation, extension of urban services, and urban development – subject to discretionary 
LAFCO action. No annexations are proposed at this time. It is expected that annexations will proceed in 
increments that approximate five-year market absorption rates. The approved Sphere area is expected to 
provide adequate capacity for the rapid residential and non-residential growth that AMBAG projects for 
Gonzales through 2035.  This timeframe corresponds with the approximately 20-year outlook of a Sphere 
of Influence, as specified in local LAFCO policies.  

Each annexation proposal will require procedural actions by the City. Some of these include preparation 
of Specific Plans (including detailed information about farmland protection, infrastructure financing, 
etc.); pre-zoning of the proposed annexation area; project-level, site-specific CEQA clearance; a City-
County property tax exchange agreement, and submittal of annexation applications to LAFCO.   

LAFCO will review and comment on some of the future City processes (for example, on the proposed 
scope of work of Specific Plans and CEQA documents).  LAFCO will also receive and act upon each 
complete annexation application.  LAFCO comments and actions will be based on applicable State laws 
and locally adopted LAFCO policies and requirements.  

Limitations of the Commission’s Authority 

As noted above and discussed in the 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study, the City of 
Gonzales and the County of Monterey have entered into an MOA regarding the City’s Sphere of 
Influence proposal.  The MOA identifies the proposed Sphere of Influence expansion area, and will 
ensure that development within the Sphere occurs in a manner that promotes logical and orderly 
development.  

Pursuant to the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act (specifically, Government Code section 56425[b]), when a 
city and a county have approved such an agreement, “The Commission shall give great weight to the 
agreement to the extent that it is consistent with Commission policies in its final determination of the 
city Sphere.” The Draft Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study analyzes the MOA for consistency 
with locally adopted LAFCO policies.  The study concludes that the MOA is consistent with LAFCO 
policies and that, on balance, the City’s Sphere of Influence proposal is reasonable in the overall context 
of the City-County MOA, the adopted General Plan policies and the certified EIR.  

Accordingly, it is the Executive Officer’s opinion that the Commission should give great weight to the 
City-County MOA in considering the proposed Sphere of Influence amendment. 

 

 

 
 

3 



Public Agency Referrals, Agency Comments and Public Notice 

LAFCO has fully complied with all requirements and good practices for public agency referrals and 
public noticing of the proposed Sphere of Influence amendment.  No comments have been received as of 
the date of writing this report. 

Affected public agencies received the proposal for review and comment in August 2014. The proposal 
was legally noticed for the September 22, 2014 LAFCO meeting in the Salinas Californian on August 30.  
The published notice also referenced a public hearing for the Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of 
Influence Study. Notice of the hearing was posted on the LAFCO website, at the County Government 
Center and the LAFCO office, and sent to affected agencies and all known interested agencies, 
organizations and individuals. The agenda was distributed to all interested parties. Copies of this report 
have been distributed to the City of Gonzales and affected agencies.   

California Environmental Quality Act Compliance 

The 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study is exempt from the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) as information collection, under Sections 15306 and 15061(b)(3) of the CEQA 
Guidelines. 

With regard to the Sphere of Influence Amendment proposal, the City of Gonzales is the CEQA Lead 
Agency, and LAFCO is a Responsible Agency. In 2011, the City of Gonzales certified a program-level 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for its General Plan. In 2014, in accordance with CEQA 
requirements, the City approved an EIR Addendum affirming that the proposed Sphere of Influence 
Amendment’s environmental impacts and mitigation requirements are adequately addressed by the 
previously certified program-level EIR. The EIR Addendum is provided in Attachment 2.  The LAFCO 
Executive Officer has reviewed the record and concurs with these findings.  

As noted above, if the Commission approves the Sphere proposal, any future annexation applications will 
require project-level, site-specific CEQA clearance before the annexations can be approved.   

Conclusion  

Based on the information in this report and in the 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for 
the City of Gonzales, the Executive Officer recommends adoption of the draft Resolution approving the 
LAFCO study and approving the City’s Sphere of Influence proposal (see Attachment 1 and Exhibit A of 
Attachment 1). 

Alternative Actions 

In lieu of the recommended actions, the Commission may act to deny the City’s Sphere of Influence 
proposal, or adopt a modified version of the proposal. Substantial changes to the draft Resolution would 
require a continuation of the agenda item, with direction to the Executive Officer to prepare a new draft 
Resolution based on the Commission’s findings.   

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kate McKenna, AICP 
Executive Officer 
 
 
 

 
 

4 



Attachments:  

1. Draft Resolution, including a Map of the City’s Proposed Sphere of Influence (Exhibit A) 
2. Environmental Impact Report – 2014 Addendum (City of Gonzales) 

(Note: The provided Addendum is an update to the City’s previously certified Final Environmental 
Impact Report, which—along with the draft version—is available on the City’s web site: 
http://www.ci.gonzales.ca.us/documents.php) 

3. Public Review Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales 
4. Map: Gonzales Area Farmland & Agricultural Resources 
5. 2014 City-County Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”); Full Text  

  
cc:   Thomas Truszkowski, City of Gonzales and Mike Novo, County of Monterey 

 
 

5 

http://www.ci.gonzales.ca.us/documents.php


             

            7.1 
 

 

 

 

 ATTACHMENT 1 

                           

Draft Resolution  



  
RESOLUTION NO. 14-XX 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
(LAFCO) OF MONTEREY COUNTY MAKING DETERMINATIONS ADOPTING 
THE 2014 MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW AND SPHERE OF INFLUENCE 
STUDY FOR THE CITY OF GONZALES, AND AMENDING THE CITY’S SPHERE 
OF INFLUENCE 

 

RESOLVED, by the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County, State of 
California, that: 

WHEREAS, State law requires that the Commission conduct periodic reviews and 
updates of the Sphere of Influence of each city and district in Monterey County (Government 
Code section 56425); and  

WHEREAS, the law further requires the Commission to update information about 
municipal services before, or in conjunction with, adopting a Sphere update (Government Code 
section 56430); and  

WHEREAS, LAFCO staff has met and consulted with City of Gonzales representatives 
and has received written information regarding current and expected growth boundaries, the 
location and characteristics of disadvantaged unincorporated communities, planned and present 
capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, financial ability to provide services, 
opportunities for shared facilities and services, government structure, and operational 
efficiencies; and 

WHEREAS, the information gathered has provided the basis for preparation of a 2014 
Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales, and the Executive 
Officer has furnished a copy of this Study to each person entitled to a copy or interested in 
receiving a copy; and  

WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales desires to expand its Sphere of Influence in order to 
implement the City’s adopted 2010 General Plan; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with State law requirements for City-County consultation to 
occur prior to submittal of a city’s Sphere of Influence Amendment proposal (Government Code 
Section 56425), the legislative bodies of the City of Gonzales and the County of Monterey have 
met, consulted, and entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) regarding orderly 
planning growth and development; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales has submitted an application (LAFCO File 14-03), 
consistent with the terms of the approved MOA, requesting that the Commission add 
approximately 2,038 acres of territory to the City’s existing Sphere of Influence; and  

WHEREAS, LAFCO staff has reviewed the MOA and the City’s Sphere of Influence 
Amendment proposal for consistency with State law and LAFCO of Monterey County’s locally 
adopted policies for Spheres of Influence, and finds them consistent with said law and policies; 
and  

 

ATTACHMENT 1 

1 
 



 

WHEREAS, LAFCO staff has provided copies of the MOA, Sphere of Influence proposal 
and 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study to the Commission; and   

 WHEREAS, State law provides that “The Commission shall give great weight to the 
agreement [City-County consultation MOA] to the extent that it is consistent with Commission 
policies” (Government Code section 56425); and 

 WHEREAS, the Commission set September 22, 2014 as the hearing date to consider the 
2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales and the City’s 
Sphere of Influence Amendment proposal, and gave the required notice of hearing; and 

 WHEREAS, the public hearing was held by the Commission upon the date and at the time 
and place specified in said notice of hearing and in any order or orders continuing such hearing, 
and 

WHEREAS, the Commission has heard from interested parties, considered the 2014 
Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales and the report of the 
Executive Officer, and considered the factors determined by the Commission to be relevant to this 
matter, including, but not limited to, factors specified in Government Code sections 56430(a), and 
the Commission’s locally adopted policies for Spheres of Influence; and 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County does 
HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER as follows: 

Section 1. The forgoing recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2. Pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, 
the Commission finds that: 

• The 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales is 
Categorically Exempt from the provisions of CEQA as information collection under 
Guidelines Section 15306.  The Commission also finds that the Sphere of Influence 
update qualifies for the general rule exemption from environmental review, CEQA 
Guidelines section 15061(b)(3), based on the determination that this action does not 
have the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. 

• Acting as the CEQA Lead Agency with regard to the Sphere of Influence Amendment 
proposal, the City of Gonzales has certified a program-level Environmental Impact 
Report (EIR) for its General Plan, and has approved an EIR Addendum affirming that 
the proposed Sphere of Influence Amendment’s environmental impacts and mitigation 
requirements are adequately addressed by the previously certified program-level EIR. 
The Commission concurs with these findings. Future annexation applications will 
remain subject to requirements for project-level, site-specific CEQA clearance. 

Section 3. In evaluating the City’s proposed Sphere of Influence Amendment, the 
Commission has conducted a review of the City’s services in accordance with Government Code 
section 56430.  The analysis, conclusions and recommendations in this review were prepared 
with information provided by, and in consultation with, the City.  Data sources are available for 
review in the Commission’s office. 

Section 4. In preparing the Municipal Services Review, the Commission has 
considered a written statement of its determinations in accord with Government Code section 

2 
 



56430(a).  These determinations, which are contained in the Study, are made with respect to each 
of the following seven areas: 

a. Growth and Population Projections for the Affected Area. 
b. The Location and Characteristics of any Disadvantaged Unincorporated 

Communities Within or Contiguous to the Sphere of Influence. 
c. Present and Planned Capacity of Public Facilities, Adequacy of Public Services, and 

Infrastructure Needs or Deficiencies including Needs or Deficiencies Related to 
Sewers, Municipal and Industrial Water, and Structural Fire Protection in any 
Disadvantaged, Unincorporated Communities Within or Contiguous to the Sphere 
of Influence. 

d. Financial Ability of Agencies to Provide Services. 
e. Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities. 
f. Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Governmental Structure 

and Operational Efficiencies. 
g. Any Other Matter Related to Effective or Efficient Service Delivery, as Required by 

Commission Policy. 

Section 5.  In evaluating the City’s Sphere of Influence proposal, the Commission has 
considered a written statement of its determinations, in accord with Section 56425(e) of the 
Government Code.  These determinations, which are contained in the Study, are made with respect 
to each of the following four areas: 

a. The Present and Planned Land Uses in the Area, Including Agricultural and Open-
Space Lands.    

b. The Present and Probable Need for Public Facilities and Services in the Area. 
c. The Present Capacity of Public Facilities and Adequacy of Public Services That the 

Agency Provides or is Authorized to Provide. 
d. The Existence of any Social or Economic Communities of Interest in the Area if the 

Commission Determines That They Are Relevant to the Agency. 

Section 6. The Commission has considered, as a part of its deliberations, all oral 
presentations and written communications received prior to the close of the public hearing. 

 Section 7.   The Commission finds the City-County MOA consistent with the 
requirements of State Law and LAFCO’s locally adopted policies for Spheres of Influence. 

 Section 8.  In accordance with Government Code section 56430, the Commission 
hereby adopts the 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales, 
including the Study’s determinations that support expanding the City’s existing Sphere of 
Influence by approximately 2,038 acres. The Commission designates the City’s amended Sphere of 
Influence accordingly, as shown in Exhibit A. 

 Section 9. In so designating the City’s Sphere of Influence, it is the Commission’s 
expressed intent and expectation that subsequent annexation proposals within the amended 
Sphere shall be fully consistent with the terms, policies, and commitments contained within the 
approved City-County Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) identified above.  

  

3 
 



UPON MOTION OF Commissioner _____________, seconded by Commissioner _______________, the 
foregoing resolution is adopted this 22nd day of September, 2014 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

 ___________________________________ 
 Sherwood Darington, Vice Chair 
 Local Agency Formation Commission of Monterey County 

 
 
 
ATTEST: I certify that the within instrument is a true and 

complete copy of the original resolution of said 
Commission on file within this office.    

 
 Witness my hand this ____ day of September, 2014 
 
 By: _________________________________ 
        Kate McKenna, AICP, Executive Officer  

4 
 



             
             

        7.1  Exhibit “A” 

 

RESOLUTION - EXHIBIT “A”   

 

Map of Proposed  

Sphere of Influence Amendment  



EXHIBIT A 

 

5 
 



             

            7.2 
 

 

 

 

 ATTACHMENT 2 

  

2014 EIR Addendum 



1 

ADDENDUM PURSUANT TO THE  

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

ARTICLE 11, SECTION 15164 

CITY OF GONZALES  

EIR ADDENDUM TO THE  

GONZALES 2010 GENERAL PLAN ENVIRONMENTAL 

IMPACT REPORT (SCH #2009121017) 

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE AMENDMENT/ 

GENERAL PLAN AMENDMENT 

Introduction 

This technical addendum has been prepared pursuant to Article 11, Section 15164 of the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) guidelines to confirm the adequacy of prior 

environmental review for an amendment to the Sphere of Influence (SOI) and minor 

changes associated with land use designations identified in the 2010 Gonzales General Plan 

(2010 General Plan). The specific proposed land use changes are identified in a draft 

memorandum of agreement (MOA) between the City of Gonzales (City) and Monterey 

County (County), dated April 7, 2014, and would be implemented following the Monterey 

County Local Agency Formation Commissions (LAFCO) approval of the SOI amendment 

and subsequent adoption of the MOA by the City and the County.  

The 2010 General Plan, which included the areas within the proposed SOI amendment and 

the areas proposed for re-designation, was analyzed in the Gonzales 2010 General Plan 

Environmental Impact Report (General Plan EIR) (Coast Plans 2010), certified January 18, 

2011, by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Resolution No. 2011-02.  

ATTACHMENT 2



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

2   

The following year, a supplement to the General Plan EIR was prepared entitled Gonzales 

Climate Action Plan Supplemental Environmental Impact Report - A Supplement to the 2010 General 

Plan Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) (Coast Plans 2012). The SEIR evaluated potential 

impacts associated with implementation of the City of Gonzales Climate Action Plan, a 

“Gonzales Grows Green” Sustainable Community Initiative (Climate Action Plan). The SEIR was 

certified on February 19, 2013, by the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Resolution No. 

2013-08 and thus became incorporated into the General Plan EIR. 

This Addendum has been prepared to provide clarification of minor changes proposed to the 

2010 General Plan and to provide explanation supported by substantial evidence as to why 

these proposed changes will not result in any new impacts or any increase in the severity of 

impacts addressed in the General Plan EIR. 

Scope and Purpose of this Addendum 

The types of environmental impacts associated with land use and future growth were 

evaluated at a policy level in the General Plan EIR. This Addendum to the General Plan 

EIR is based on the program-level evaluation of environmental impacts presented in the 

previously-certified EIR.  

CEQA REQUIREMENTS  

Section 15162 of the CEQA Guidelines provides: 

(a)  When an EIR has been certified or a negative declaration adopted for a project, no 

subsequent EIR shall be prepared for that project unless the lead agency determines, on 

the basis of substantial evidence in the light of the whole record, one or more of the 

following: 

(1)  Substantial changes are proposed in the project which will require major 

revisions of the previous EIR or negative declaration due to the involvement of 

new significant environmental effects or a substantial increase in the severity of 

previously identified significant effects; 

(2)  Substantial changes occur with respect to the circumstances under which the 

project is undertaken which will require major revisions of the previous EIR or 

Negative Declaration due to the involvement of new significant environmental 

effects or a substantial increase in the severity of previously identified significant 

effects; or 



  GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

 3 

(3)  New information of substantial importance, which was not known and could not 

have been known with the exercise of reasonable diligence at the time the 

previous EIR was certified as complete or the Negative Declaration was adopted, 

shows any of the following: 

(A) The project will have one or more significant effects not discussed in the 

previous EIR or negative declaration; 

(B) Significant effects previously examined will be substantially more severe 

than shown in the previous EIR; 

(C) Mitigation measures or alternatives previously found not to be feasible 

would in fact be feasible, and would substantially reduce one or more 

significant effects of the project, but the project proponents decline to adopt 

the mitigation measure or alternative; or  

(D) Mitigation measures or alternatives which are considerably different from 

those analyzed in the previous EIR would substantially reduce one or more 

significant effects on the environment, but the project proponents decline to 

adopt the mitigation measure or alternative. 

In the alternative, where some changes or additions are necessary to the previously approved 

EIR, but none of the changes or additions meet the standards as provided for a subsequent 

EIR, then the lead agency is directed to prepare an Addendum to the EIR (CEQA 

Guidelines, section 15164). Further, the Addendum should include a "brief explanation of 

the decision not to prepare a subsequent EIR pursuant to Section 15162," and that 

"explanation must be supported by substantial evidence" (CEQA Guidelines, section 

15164 (e)).  

None of the conditions described in CEQA Guidelines Section 15162 calling for preparation 

of a subsequent environmental impact report (EIR) or negative declaration have occurred 

and therefore, the City of Gonzales has determined that preparation of this EIR Addendum 

is appropriate. The EIR Addendum allows the City to make “minor modifications” to its 

adopted General Plan and certified EIR if no new significant impacts will occur. 

Background 

The 2010 General Plan establishes a long-range development plan for the City that identifies 

the “ultimate” extent of City growth. The 2010 General Plan planning area includes the 

City’s SOI, an Urban Growth Area (which identifies areas of future growth to approximately 

2035) and an Urban Reserve Area (which identifies areas of future growth beyond the Urban 

Growth Area to approximately 2050). Refer to Figure 1, 2010 General Plan Planning 

Boundaries. 



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM

4

At the time of adoption of the 2010 General Plan, all areas of the Gonzales 1996 General 

Plan had been included within the City’s SOI, and almost all territory in the SOI had been 

annexed to the City. The City recognized that in order to begin implementation of the 2010 

General Plan, action would be needed by the City to request an amendment to the SOI from 

LAFCO so that additional territory could be added.   

The 2010 General Plan’s Urban Growth Area contains approximately 2,150 acres of land 

beyond the SOI, primarily extending east of the City with some smaller areas to north and 

south included. The City is proposing an amendment to its existing SOI such that the 

amended SOI would be generally consistent with the City’s Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) 

as identified in the 2010 General Plan with some exceptions as detailed below. The proposed 

SOI would expand the existing SOI by a total of approximately 2,028 acres. Refer to Figure 

2, Proposed Sphere of Influence).  

The City and the County have recently completed negotiations with regard to an MOA that 

expresses their mutual interest to work together on issues of planning, growth, and 

development. The MOA acknowledges the interest of both parties to provide more certainty 

regarding future direction and to reduce unnecessary conflicts and to reduce costs for future 

development, and to be as effective as possible in the implementation of their respective 

General Plans. The MOA also acknowledges a mutual interest of both jurisdictions to 

provide for the long-term protection of valuable agricultural lands. The MOA is a required 

component of the application to be submitted to LAFCO proposing the amendment to the 

City’s SOI. 

During the negotiation of the MOA, the City and County identified three specific planning 

actions that would be implemented if the proposed SOI Amendment is approved by LAFCO 

and if the MOA is subsequently adopted. The first two actions would result in minor 

changes associated with land use designations identified in the 2010 General Plan as 

illustrated on Figure 3, Future General Plan Land Use Amendments Consistent with 

City/County Memorandum of Agreement (April 7, 2014). Each of the three planning 

actions are summarized below: 

 Extent of the City’s Urban Growth Boundary/ Sphere of Influence at Gloria Road.

The City agrees to amend the 2010 General Plan to remove all Commercial, Industrial,

and Industrial (Urban Reserve) land use designations south of Gloria Road and

outside of the proposed SOI and replace those designations with an Agricultural

designation and the designation of Permanent Agricultural Edge. Areas designated

Commercial and Industrial, which are located east of U.S. Highway 101 and south of

Gloria Road and within the existing SOI shall remain designated for Commercial and

Industrial use.



Legend

Source: Google Earth 2013, City of  Gonzales 2010, Monterey County GIS 2010

Figure 1

Gonzales General Plan EIR Addendum

2010 General Plan Planning Boundaries

1 mile

Gonzales River R
d.

Gonzales River R
d.

Gonzales River R
d.

N. Alta St.

N. Alta St.

N. Alta St.
WastewaterWastewater

Treatment PlantTreatment Plant

Wastewater

Treatment Plant

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101 Gloria Rd.
Gloria Rd.
Gloria Rd.

5th
 St.

5th
 St.

5th
 St.

Iverson Rd.

Iverson Rd.

Iverson Rd.

Fanoe Rd.

Fanoe Rd.

Fanoe Rd.

Old Stage Rd.

Old Stage Rd.

Old Stage Rd.

Cord
a Rd.

Cord
a Rd.

Cord
a Rd.

Iverson Rd.Iverson Rd.Iverson Rd.

River Rd.
River Rd.
River Rd.

City Limit Urban Growth AreaSphere of Influence Urban Reserve Balance of Planning Area



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

6   

This side intentionally left blank. 

 

 



Gonzales River R
d.

Gonzales River R
d.

Gonzales River R
d.

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

Gloria Rd.
Gloria Rd.
Gloria Rd.

N. Alta St.

N. Alta St.

N. Alta St.

5th
 St.

5th
 St.

5th
 St.

WastewaterWastewater

Treatment PlantTreatment Plant

Wastewater

Treatment Plant

Fanoe Rd.

Fanoe Rd.

Fanoe Rd.

Iverson Rd.

Iverson Rd.

Iverson Rd.

Source: Google Earth 2013, City of  Gonzales 2010, Monterey County GIS 2010

Figure 2

Gonzales General Plan EIR Addendum

Proposed Sphere of  Influence

0.75 miles

City Limit (1,268.11 acres)

Sphere of Influence (Proposed) (3,349.96 acres)

Sphere of Influence (Existing) (1,321.53 acres)

Urban Growth Boundary (General Plan 2010) (3,478.54 acres)



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

8   

This side intentionally left blank. 

 

 



Agriculture and PermanentAgriculture and Permanent
Agricultural Edge ReplacedAgricultural Edge Replaced

with Industrial/Manufacturingwith Industrial/Manufacturing
and Permanent Agricultural Edgeand Permanent Agricultural Edge

Gonzales River R
d.

Gonzales River R
d.

Gonzales River R
d.

Industrial/ManufacturingIndustrial/Manufacturing
Replaced with Agriculture andReplaced with Agriculture and

Permanent Agricultural EdgePermanent Agricultural Edge

HighwayHighway
CommercialCommercial
Replaced withReplaced with
Agriculture andAgriculture and
PermanentPermanent
Agricultural EdgeAgricultural Edge

Highway
Commercial
Replaced with
Agriculture and
Permanent
Agricultural Edge

Gloria Rd.
Gloria Rd.
Gloria Rd.

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

N. Alta St.

N. Alta St.

N. Alta St.

5th
 St.

5th
 St.

5th
 St.

Iverson Rd.

Iverson Rd.

Iverson Rd.

Fanoe Rd.

Fanoe Rd.

Fanoe Rd.

Industrial/Industrial/
ManufacturingManufacturing
(Urban Reserve)(Urban Reserve)
Replaced withReplaced with
Agriculture andAgriculture and
PermanentPermanent
Agricultural EdgeAgricultural Edge

Agriculture and Permanent
Agricultural Edge Replaced

with Industrial/Manufacturing
and Permanent Agricultural Edge

Industrial/Manufacturing
Replaced with Agriculture and

Permanent Agricultural Edge

Industrial/Industrial/
ManufacturingManufacturing
Replaced withReplaced with
Agriculture andAgriculture and
PermanentPermanent
Agricultural EdgeAgricultural Edge

Industrial/
Manufacturing
Replaced with
Agriculture and
Permanent
Agricultural Edge

Industrial/
Manufacturing
(Urban Reserve)
Replaced with
Agriculture and
Permanent
Agricultural Edge

Industrial ManufacturingIndustrial Manufacturing
(Urban Reserve) Replaced(Urban Reserve) Replaced

with Agriculture andwith Agriculture and
Agricultural EdgeAgricultural Edge

Industrial Manufacturing
(Urban Reserve) Replaced

with Agriculture and
Agricultural Edge

WastewaterWastewater

Treatment PlantTreatment Plant

Wastewater

Treatment Plant

Source: Google Earth 2013, City of  Gonzales 2010, Monterey County GIS 2010

Figure 3

Gonzales General Plan EIR Addendum

Future General Plan Land Use Amendments Consistent with
City/County Memorandum of  Agreement (April 7, 2014)

0.75 miles

City Limit Urban Growth Boundary (Future)Sphere of Influence (Existing)

Removed from Urban Growth Boundary Added to Sphere of Influence and Urban Growth Boundary Removed from Urban Reserve

Permanant Agricultural Edge (Added)



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

10   

This side intentionally left blank. 

 

 



  GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

 11 

 Maintenance of a Positive Housing and Jobs Relationship. The City and County 

agree that the removal of job-generating land uses south of Gloria Road weakens the 

housing and jobs relationship provided in the 2010 General Plan, and that the 

relationship that currently exists in the City’s General Plan should be maintained. 

Therefore, in exchange for the removal of the job-generating land uses south of Gloria 

Road, the County agrees to allow the City to pursue the designation of Assessor Parcel 

numbers 223-021-001, 020-031-003, 020-031-004 (located south of Gonzales River 

Road) as Industrial with the designation of Permanent Agricultural Edge along the 

outside of the southern and western boundary to prevent future extension of urban 

land uses. 

 Access Limitations to Gloria and Iverson Road and Associated Lane. The City 

agrees to coordinate with the County and plan the arterial roadways along Associated 

Lane, Iverson Road, and Gloria Road in a manner that supports the free flow of both 

automobile and truck traffic, utilizing method(s) determined by a traffic engineer to be 

practical, including but not limited to: utilizing the existing County road as a frontage 

road/by-pass road, round-abouts, directional barriers or medians, trap lanes, and right-

turn-in and right-turn-out intersections. 

The planning action described above is to be interpreted in a manner that most 

facilitates the movement of agricultural vehicles from agricultural fields to the 

highway, agricultural plants, or rail yards with little to no interference from City traffic. 

Project Description 

The City is proposing an amendment to its existing SOI. The proposed SOI would generally 

be consistent with the City’s 2010 General Plan’s Urban Growth Area with these exceptions: 

1) the proposed SOI would not include 182.51 acres of land located south of Gloria Road 

that is currently within the City’s UGB and 2) the proposed SOI would include 97.60 acres 

of land located south of Gonzales River Road that is currently outside City’s UGB. It is 

noted that the proposed SOI would also include a 5.54 acre parcel east of the City’s 

wastewater treatment plant that was shown to be within the UGB but, incorrectly identified 

as being within the existing SOI in the 2010 General Plan and General Plan EIR.  

Assuming LAFCO approval of the proposed SOI amendment, and subsequent adoption of 

the City County MOA (April 7, 2014), the City would proceed with land use amendments to 

the City’s 2010 General Plan (GPA) as identified in the MOA. The GPA would remove 

approximately 394 acres of commercial and industrial land south and east of the City, south 

of Gloria Road, from the urban growth boundary and urban reserve area and redesignate the 

land as agriculture. The GPA would also redesignate approximately 98 acres of agricultural 



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

12   

land west of the City, south of Gonzales River Road as Industrial/Manufacturing. The 

approximate five acre parcel east of the City’s wastewater treatment plant would be 

redesignated as Public/Quasi Public consistent with the assumptions made in the 2010 

General Plan and 2010 General plan EIR. These amendments are detailed below in Table 1 

and Table 2 and illustrated on Figure 4, Parcel Map. 

Table 1 Areas to be Removed from Existing Urban Growth Boundary and Urban 

Reserve 

APN  Existing General Plan 

Designation 

Proposed General Plan 

Designation 

Acres to Be 

Redesignated 

Areas Within the Existing Urban Growth Boundary 

257-021-021 Highway Commercial Agriculture 30.011 

257-031-021 Industrial/Manufacturing Agriculture 76.441 

257-021-004 Industrial/Manufacturing Agriculture 69.661 

257-021-022 Industrial/Manufacturing Agriculture 6.40 

Subtotal 182.51 

Areas Within The Existing Urban Reserve 

257-021-038 Industrial/Manufacturing Agriculture 11.31 

257-021-037 Industrial/Manufacturing Agriculture 200.471 

Subtotal 211.78 

TOTAL 394.29 

Source: Google Earth 2013, City of Gonzales 2010, Monterey County GIS 2010 

Notes:  1 Portion of the parcel 

As identified in Table 1, approximately 394 acres (approximately 182 acres within the 

existing UGB and 212 acres within the existing Urban Reserve) are proposed to be removed 

from future urban development. In addition, the designation of Permanent Agricultural Edge 

would be applied to the parcels along the border of the proposed SOI to prevent future 

extension of urban land uses.  



223-021-001
(93.24 acres)

020-031-004020-031-004
(0.20 acres)(0.20 acres)

020-031-004
(0.20 acres)

020-031-003020-031-003
(1.9 acres)(1.9 acres)

020-031-003
(1.9 acres)

020-031-002020-031-002
(2.26 acres)(2.26 acres)

020-031-002
(2.26 acres)

257021020000257021020000

257-021-037

257-021-038257-021-038
(11.31 acres)(11.31 acres)
257-021-038
(11.31 acres)

257-021-022
(6.40 acres)

Gonzales River R
d.

Gonzales River R
d.

Gonzales River R
d.

Gloria Rd.
Gloria Rd.
Gloria Rd.

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

U.S. H
ighw

ay 101

N. Alta St.

N. Alta St.

N. Alta St.

Iverson Rd.

Iverson Rd.

Iverson Rd.

257-021-004

(30.01 acres)

257-021-021

(76.44 acres)

(200.47 acres)

(69.66 acres)

Figure 4

Gonzales General Plan EIR Addendum

Parcel Map

Source: Monterey County GIS 2010, City of  Gonzales 2010 
0 0.35 miles

City Limit

Added to Proposed Sphere of Influence & Urban Growth Boundary

Removed from Existing Urban Growth Boundary

Removed from Existing Urban Reserve



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

14   

This side intentionally left blank. 

 

 



  GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

 15 

Table 2 Areas to be Added to the Proposed SOI and UGB 

APN  Existing General Plan 

Designation 

Proposed General Plan 

Designation 

Acres 

223-021-001 Agriculture Industrial/Manufacturing 93.24 

020-031-002 Agriculture Industrial/Manufacturing 2.26 

020-031-003 Agriculture Industrial/Manufacturing 1.90 

020-031-004 Agriculture Industrial/Manufacturing 0.20 

223-061-014 Agriculture Public/Quasi Public 5.54 

TOTAL 103.14 

Source: Google Earth 2013, City of Gonzales 2010, Monterey County GIS 2010 

As identified in Table 2, approximately 103 acres are proposed to be added to the SOI and 

designated for future Industrial/Manufacturing use. In addition, the designation of 

Permanent Agricultural Edge would be applied along the outside of the southern and 

western boundary of parcel 223-021-001 to prevent future extension of urban land uses. 

It is noted that 2.26 acres (APN 020-031-002) of the approximate 103 acres, is included in 

the proposed SOI to ensure that an island is not created, which would be inconsistent with 

LAFCO policy. The parcel is currently developed with agricultural farmworker housing.  

As identified earlier, 5.54 acres (223-061-014) of the area to be added proposed SOI is 

included to provide consistency with the assumptions of the 2010 General Plan and 2010 

General Plan EIR regarding the land area designated for the City’s wastewater treatment 

plant.  

Nearly all the areas proposed to be removed from future urban development and the areas 

proposed to be added to the proposed SOI are identified as Prime Farmland in the 2010 

General Plan (Figure 4.2.1). The planning actions described above would generally result in 

a locational exchange of approximately 103 acres of development-oriented land uses with 

Agricultural and Permanent Agricultural Edge land uses.  

For the purposes of CEQA, the term “project” refers to the whole of an action which has the 

potential for resulting in a direct physical change or a reasonably foreseeable indirect 

physical change in the environment (CEQA Guidelines Section 15378[a]). Therefore, in 

compliance with CEQA, this EIR Addendum considers the project to be the whole of the 

planning actions described above: SOI amendment, MOA adoption, and General Plan 

Amendment. The project will require the following actions and/or approvals: 



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

16   

 EIR Addendum to the General Plan EIR preparation and certification (City of 

Gonzales);  

 SOI Amendment application and approval (LAFCO); 

 MOA adoption (City of Gonzales and the County of Monterey); and 

 General Plan Amendment (City of Gonzales). 

Evaluation of Environmental Effects 

The following environmental analysis supports a determination that approval and 

implementation of the proposed SOI amendment and land use changes to the 2010 General 

Plan identified in the project description above, would not result in any previously-

undisclosed significant environmental impacts or a substantial increase in the severity of 

previously disclosed impacts or additional significant environmental impacts beyond those 

previously covered under the General Plan EIR. 

The following is a section-by-section analysis of the General Plan EIR evaluating the 

potential environmental implications of the SOI amendment and GPA proposed by the City 

of Gonzales. The analysis includes each of the eighteen environmental concern areas 

evaluated in the General Plan EIR. 

Aesthetics 

The General Plan EIR determined that build out associated with the 2010 General Plan 

would result in the conversion of the rural/open space landscape that currently characterizes 

the planning area, to a built landscape associated with urban uses. This would substantially 

degrade the visual character and quality of the existing landscape and was identified as a 

significant and unavoidable impact. The General Plan EIR also determined that 

urbanization would have the potential to increase light trespass, light pollution, and glare in 

the planning area which was also identified as significant and unavoidable. 

The proposed project would result in reduced rural/open space (agricultural) conversion and 

reduced urban development overall. The proposed SOI amendment and GPA would 

therefore not increase the severity of previously identified aesthetic impacts, nor would it 

result in any new significant effects related to aesthetics that were not previously identified in 

the EIR. In fact, impacts may be lessened. There are no substantial changes to the 

circumstances under which implementation of the 2010 General Plan will be undertaken, 

and no new information of substantial importance which was not known and could not have 

been known when the EIR was certified has since been identified. Therefore, the proposed 

amendments regarding aesthetics do not meet the standards for a subsequent or 

supplemental EIR as provided pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines, section 15162. 



  GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

 17 

Agricultural Resources 

The General Plan EIR found that implementation of the 2010 General Plan would provide 

the basis for development activity that could result in the conversion of Prime Farmland and 

Farmland of Statewide Importance (Impact AG-1). This was determined to be a significant 

and unavoidable impact. The proposed SOI amendment and GPA will result in a net 

reduction of 296 acres of mostly prime agricultural land that could be converted to urban use 

by the 2010 General Plan. The project will therefore result in a beneficial impact with regard 

to agricultural resources. 

In addition to the lessened impact to agricultural lands, the City’s General Plan and MOA 

with the County have several measures to ensure compliance with provisions related to 

LAFCO’s legislative mandate to protect open space and agricultural lands within planned, 

well-ordered, and efficient development patterns.  

The City’s General Plan enacts long-standing policies of open space and prime agricultural 

land preservation, specifically implementing action COS-4.1.1 that directs the focus of future 

urban growth to the east of Highway 101 in order to keep the highest quality agricultural 

lands located west of the highway in production. Additional General Plan actions support 

agricultural preservation by encouraging agricultural as an interim land use for undeveloped 

properties (COS-4.1.2), providing interim mitigation for agricultural lands impacted by the 

development of a Specific Plan area (COS-4.1.3), and mitigation for protection of 

agricultural operations from urban uses (COS-4.1.4) 

The City has agreed that by signing the MOA, the City expresses its intent to direct growth 

to the east of Highway 101, away from the highest quality farmland, and to establish a 

permanent agricultural edge for the purpose of maintaining a clearly defined north and south 

boundary between the urbanized incorporated areas of City and the agricultural areas within 

the unincorporated County. Additionally by signing the MOA, the City has agreed to 

promote long-term conservation of commercial agriculture outside of the sphere boundary 

for the purposes of regional economic stability and to maintain physical separation from 

other communities in the area, including Soledad, the state prisons, and Chualar. For 

development of land within the proposed SOI, excepting lands already within the existing 

SOI, the MOA also includes the City’s intent to implement an Agricultural Land Mitigation 

Program with mitigation ratio at 1:1 for any impacts to Prime Farmland, or Farmland of 

Statewide Importance.   

Open space land uses are proposed to be maintained as open space by the City implementing 

the designations currently reflected on the 2010 land use map. Future annexations and 

development proposals that may request a general plan amendment, would be required to 

thoroughly analyze such an amendment and would be required to prepare the appropriate 

level of CEQA documentation to ensure that impacts to the change in land use designation 

is less than significant.  



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

18   

The intent of the City to manage development of land within the City’s SOI utilizing the best 

available “sustainable” practices is supported by City’s General Plan Policy SUS-1.2 and 

Implementation Action SUS-1.2.1 as cited in the MOA. 

Therefore, for reasons discussed above, the proposed SOI amendment and GPA results in 

lessened impacts to agricultural lands and ensures compliance with the LAFCO mandate for 

open space and agricultural preservation within a well-ordered development plan. 

Air Quality 

The General Plan EIR determined that all air quality impacts were either less than 

significant or less than significant with mitigation. The proposed SOI and General Plan 

amendments would result in a reduction of land anticipated for commercial and industrial 

development; as such, traffic trips, stationary emissions, and operational pollutant emissions 

associated with these types of uses would be proportionately decreased. The conclusions of 

the General Plan EIR would remain essentially the same. 

Biological Resources 

The General Plan EIR identifies three habitat types within the City’s planning area that are 

recognized as sensitive habitats and protected under CEQA. These include freshwater 

marsh, aquatic, and Pacific willow riparian woodland. All three habitat types are located 

along the Gonzales Slough which flows northwest through the City limits. In addition, 

aquatic habitat is also found in Johnson Canyon Creek, in the eastern extents of the planning 

area; McCoy Creek, located in the southeast extents of the planning area; and another 

unnamed drainage in the planning area. 

Southeast of the City, the land area planned for development would be decreased, reducing 

the possibility of affecting any significant biological resources. On the northwest side, an 

additional 98 acres of agricultural land would be subject to future conversion to industrial 

use and approximately five acres would be added to the City’s wastewater treatment area. 

The General Plan EIR recognizes that cultivated agricultural land in the City’s planning area 

has marginal habitat value and does not support naturalized vegetation or sensitive plant 

communities. With no new or significant habitat involved with the proposed SOI and 

General Plan amendments, all conclusions and mitigation of the General Plan EIR remain 

the same. 

Cultural Resources 

The proposed SOI amendment and land use changes associated with the proposed GPA 

would have a negligible effect on cultural resources. The project will remove approximately 



  GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

 19 

394 acres of future Highway Commercial and Industrial/Manufacturing development from 

existing Urban Growth Boundary and Urban Reserve areas of the 2010 General Plan. The 

103 acres added to the proposed SOI is agricultural land located in an area of low 

archaeological sensitivity with no known historic or archaeological resources on site 

(General Plan EIR Figure 4.14.1). There will be no additional or increased level of impacts 

than were previously identified in the General Plan EIR. In addition, all previously identified 

mitigation measures from the General Plan EIR will remain in place, including the 

requirement for project-level analysis of cultural resources for all areas planned for 

development and appropriate controls in the event of accidental discovery during 

construction. 

Energy Conservation 

The General Plan EIR determined that buildout of the 2010 General Plan would result in 

increased demand for electricity and natural gas that could potentially result in wasteful 

energy consumption. The impact was determined to be less than significant. In evaluating 

the 2010 General Plan, the General Plan EIR identified residential, commercial, and 

manufacturing as energy consumptive land uses. Agriculture was not considered an energy 

consumptive use.   

The proposed SOI amendment and GPA would result in a reduction of land anticipated for 

commercial and manufacturing development therefore; the energy demands associated with 

these types of uses would be proportionately decreased. The conclusions of the General Plan 

EIR would remain essentially the same. 

Geology and Geologic Constraints 

All of the subject parcels are farmland with no known unique geological features or 

characteristics. The proposed SOI amendment and land use changes of the GPA will not 

affect any geologic landform or result in any new or significant issues beyond those analyzed 

in the General Plan EIR. 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 

In 2012, a year following certification of the General Plan EIR and adoption of the 2010 

General Plan, a supplement to the General Plan EIR (SEIR) was prepared by Coast Plans 

(Gonzales Climate Action Plan Supplemental Environmental Impact Report - A Supplement to the 

2010 General Plan Environmental Impact Report). The SEIR evaluated potential impacts 

associated with implementation of the City’s Climate Action Plan. The City Council 

certified the SEIR in 2013 thus incorporating, by reference, the document into the General 

Plan EIR. The Climate Action Plan was adopted on February 19, 2013. 



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

20   

The SEIR determined that the Climate Action Plan set forth a credible plan to reduce 

greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions consistent with the statewide goals established in AB 32. 

For existing development, the Climate Action Plan establishes targets to reduce GHG 

emissions by 15 percent from 2005 baseline emissions, which when combined with expected 

reductions from statewide programs would result in a total reduction of 28 percent by the 

year 2020. For new development, the Climate Action Plan would establish targets to reduce 

growth in GHG emissions by 15 percent from 2020 “business-as-usual” emissions, which 

when combined with expected reductions from statewide programs would result in a total 

reduction of 29.5 percent by the year 2020.  

Having established GHG emission reduction targets in line with AB 32 goals, the Climate 

Action Plan then identifies local GHG emission reduction measures with the potential to 

meet the established targets to 2020 and for the long-term out to 2050. The Climate Action 

Plan also contains an implementation program that establishes a metric against which to 

measure new development projects and a monitoring and updating plan to ensure regular 

reporting and adjustments to keep the program on track.  

The State of California added Section 15183.5 (Tiering and Streamlining the Analysis of 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions) to the CEQA Guidelines in 2010 which allows local 

jurisdictions to use climate action plans as a basis for mitigating the effects of a project’s 

GHG emission impacts. According to Section 15183.5, a lead agency may determine that a 

project’s incremental contribution to a cumulative effect is not cumulatively considerable if 

the project complies with the requirements in a previously adopted plan or mitigation 

program under specified circumstances. The City requires development approvals to contain 

a plan to implement GHG Best Management Practices that would result in achieving the 

limits on GHG emissions adopted as part of the citywide climate action plan. As such, any 

future development under the proposed amendments would be required to comply with the 

City’s climate action plan and in doing so would have less than significant GHG emissions. 

The SEIR determined that combined growth in the residential and commercial/industrial 

sectors represents about 67 percent of total future emissions in Gonzales. The 

commercial/industrial sector would represent approximately 31 percent of future emissions. 

The proposed amendments would reduce the amount of land anticipated for commercial and 

manufacturing development; therefore, GHG emissions associated with these types of uses 

would be proportionately decreased. Continued agricultural use will also emit GHG 

emissions but at a lesser rate than they would if converted to commercial or industrial use as 

both mobile emission and stationary emissions are less with agricultural use compared to 

urban use. Therefore, overall the net increase in GHG emissions anticipated for 2020 would 

be slightly less than what was projected in the SEIR. 



  GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

 21 

With the proposed SOI amendment and GPA, there will be no additional or increased level 

of impacts than were previously identified in the SEIR. In addition, all previously identified 

mitigation measures from the SEIR will remain in place, including the requirement for 

project-level compliance with the City’s adopted Climate Action Plan.   

Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

The proposed amendments will remove approximately 394 acres of Industrial/ 

Manufacturing use in the southeastern portion of the planning area, which will reduce the 

likelihood that hazardous conditions associated with this type of use would occur. The 103 

acres of agricultural land to be added to the SOI and re-designated for future industrial 

development is not located within a high or moderate fire potential area and is not located 

within a ¼ mile of a school (General plan EIR Figure 4.17.1). As identified in the General 

Plan EIR, the City of Gonzales requires site-specific investigations and reports on potential 

soil contamination as part of Specific Plan or other major development plan review and 

approval. Such an investigation and report shall include measures necessary to mitigate any 

environmental hazards to a less than significant level. No additional potential impacts 

beyond what was identified in the General Plan EIR would occur.  

Hydrology and Water Quality 

The overall development potential of the General Plan will be reduced by the proposed SOI 

amendment and GPA. Consequently, drainage and water quality impacts resulting from 

new development would decrease proportionally. 

Land Use and Planning 

The proposed amendments will provide a logical SOI boundary for land intended for 

development within the time horizon of the  2010 General Plan, while removing a large area 

of important and prime farmland from potential Commercial or Industrial/Manufacturing 

development. To preserve the housing and jobs relationship provided in the 2010 General 

Plan, approximately 98 acres south of Gonzales River Road will be added to the SOI in 

exchange for the removal of the job generating land uses south of Gloria Road. The land use 

impacts of the project are considered beneficial. 

Mineral Resources 

The Initial Study prepared for the 2010 General Plan EIR concluded that buildout of the 

2010 General Plan had no potential to result in adverse effects in impacts to mineral 

resources. Therefore, as identified in the 2010 General Plan EIR, the topic was excluded 



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

22   

from further consideration in the EIR. The proposed SOI amendment and land use changes 

of the GPA will not affect any land areas or mineral resources beyond what was identified in 

the 2010 General Plan Initial Study and EIR and the conclusion of “no impact” remains 

the same. 

Noise 

The General Plan EIR determined that the plans, policies, and actions of the Gonzales 2010 

General Plan lessen the potential impact of exposure of persons to or generation of noise in 

excess of standards to a level of less than significant. As identified in the General Plan EIR, 

the primary source of noise within the City is roadway noise. With a decrease in total traffic 

volumes resulting from the SOI amendment and GPA, no significant change in the noise 

environment would be expected to occur. The future noise environment in the amendment 

areas and all areas of the City will be controlled by the regulations of the noise ordinance. 

Parks and Recreation 

The parks and recreation section of the General Plan EIR analyzed the environmental effects 

of the buildout of the 2010 General Plan on park and recreational resources in the City of 

Gonzales. The proposed SOI amendment and GPA would not result in residential 

development that would increase demand for services including parks. No amendments are 

proposed to recreational land.  

Population and Housing 

The General Plan EIR acknowledged that 2010 General Plan buildout will result in a 

significant increasing in population. The proposed removal of commercial and 

industrial/manufacturing land from the southeastern portion of the plan area, the addition of 

approximately 98 acres of industrial use along Gonzales River Road, and the addition of 

approximately five acres of public/quasi public land near the wastewater treatment plant to 

the SOI will not affect population or housing stock. The location of future industrial land in 

the northwestern portion of the City along Gonzales River Road will not disrupt 

neighborhoods or displace existing housing units. 

Public Services  

The public services section of the General Plan EIR analyzed police facilities, fire protection 

facilities, student generation and schools, and government services. The locational change of 

future industrial development associated with the proposed SOI amendment and GPA 

would not result in increased demand that would affect the provision of police, fire, school 

and other government services.   



  GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

 23 

Transportation/Traffic 

As part of the MOA between the City and County, the City agreed to “coordinate with the 

County and plan the arterial roadways along Associated Lane, Iverson Road and Gloria 

Road in a manner that supports the free-flow of both automobile and truck traffic, utilizing 

method(s) determined by a traffic engineer to be practical, including but not limited to: 

utilizing the existing County road as a frontage road/by-pass road, round-abouts, directional 

barriers or medians, trap lanes and right-turn-in and right-turn-out intersections.” This would 

ensure that the movement of agricultural vehicles from agricultural fields to the highway, 

agricultural plants, or rail yards would be facilitated with little to no interference from City 

traffic. The project will therefore result in a beneficial impact with regard to agricultural 

truck transportation and circulation. 

The General Plan EIR evaluated potential transportation impacts associated with buildout of 

the City’s Urban Growth Area through year 2050 and buildout of the Urban Reserve beyond 

year 2050. The EIR determined that the addition of a significant amount of new industrial 

and manufacturing uses along Gloria Road would add a considerable number of semi-

trailers and other large trucks to the roadway. This combined with Gloria Road being one of 

the official truck routes for hauling waste to the new Johnson Canyon Landfill east of the 

City and some additional traffic being shifted from the Fifth Street corridor onto Gloria 

Road would require that Gloria Road be developed as a four-lane divided arterial between 

Highway 101 and “Arterial A” and as a two-lane arterial between Street “A and Iverson 

Road. The removal of the 394 acres of Commercial and Industrial/Manufacturing from the 

area south and east of the City (more than 200 acres of which are along Gloria Road), as 

proposed by the GPA would serve to significantly reduce traffic along this roadway 

providing a local benefit to traffic and circulation.  

The approximate 98 acres proposed for inclusion into the City’s SOI for future 

Industrial/Manufacturing uses would be located south of Gonzales River Road, adjacent to 

established Industrial/Manufacturing uses within the City. Development of this area would 

add additional trips to Gonzales River Road but the proposed amendments would result in a 

significant reduction in the amount of industrial and manufacturing development citywide 

that was anticipated in the 2010 General Plan.  

The City requires that development approvals contain a project-level traffic analysis for all 

areas planned for urbanization. The analysis must evaluate the full range of operational, 

safety, emergency access, parking, and alternative-mode transportation issues and must 

recommend measures to mitigate any significant impact that a specific project may have on 

transportation/traffic. The EIR provides additional mitigation measure to ensure that future 

development within the City would not result in significant traffic/transportation impacts.  



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

24   

With the proposed SOI amendment and GPA, there will be no additional or increased level 

of impacts than were previously identified in the EIR. In addition, all previously identified 

mitigation measures from the EIR will remain in place, including the requirement for 

project-level traffic analysis.   

Utilities and Service Systems 

The utilities and service system section of the General Plan EIR analyzed impacts to 

wastewater collection and treatment, storm drainage facilities, water supply, and solid waste 

service. Each of these service systems is addressed below. 

Wastewater. With regard to the violation of water quality standards, the General Plan EIR 

identified that the City’s standard practice of evaluating wastewater from proposed new 

industrial uses as part of the use permit process reduces this impact to less than significant. 

With regard to issues related to wastewater treatment plant expansion, the General Plan EIR 

identified that policies and actions contained in the 2010 General Plan are sufficient to 

ensure that adequate treatment plant capacity is developed to accommodate growth in the 

planning area. The General Plan EIR did identify that the expansion of treatment plant 

capacities would result in a significant unavoidable impact to agricultural resources, because 

some of the available options for expanding treatment plant capacity would involve the 

conversion of Prime Farmland. The proposed SOI amendment and GPA would not result in 

an additional or increased demand for or level of impacts related to wastewater 

requirements, collection or services than were previously identified in the General Plan EIR. 

Storm Drainage. The General Plan EIR determined that the policies and actions contained 

in the 2010 General Plan lessen the potential impacts related to the installation of drainage 

improvements in the planning area to a level of less than significant. The proposed SOI 

amendment and GPA would not affect these conclusions. 

Water Supply. In regards to water supply, the analysis in the General Plan EIR Subsection 

4.8.3.2 notes that the 2010 General Plan calls for no net increase in groundwater well 

capacity in the planning area (Policy FS-2.1). Implementing Action FS-2.1.1 calls for the 

protection of existing water service, requiring that the City allow new development only 

“when public water can be supplied and delivered without threatening water supply or water 

quality in the rest of Gonzales.” Other actions call for water conservation and/or water 

recycling (Implementing Actions FS-2.1.5 and FS-2.1.6). The analysis contained in 

Subsection 4.8.3.2 concluded that the policies and implementing actions of the 2010 General 

Plan, plus the requirement for collaborative planning and documentation of water sources, 

required by Senate Bills 610 including preparation of water supply assessments, serve to 

protect groundwater supplies and to reduce the environmental effects associated with 

supplying water to the planning area to a level of less than significant.  



  GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

 25 

It is acknowledged that agricultural use is generally more water intensive than urban uses 

such as commercial and industrial use, and continued agricultural use in areas that were 

anticipated for urban use by in the 2010 General Plan may result in a greater overall water 

demand in the future than forecasted. However, the agricultural areas identified for 

preservation by the project are currently being served by the agricultural water sources and 

constitute an existing condition, not an impact of the proposal. In the future, as individual 

subareas within the current study area are proposed to be annexed into the City and 

developed, the required project-level CEQA clearance will include a site-specific analysis of 

public services, including water availability. The City’s requirement to allow new 

development only when public water can be supplied and delivered without threatening 

water supply or water quality in the rest of Gonzales would ensure impacts to water supply 

going into the future would be less than significant. 

Solid Waste. The General Plan EIR determined that the policies and actions contained in 

the Gonzales 2010 General Plan lessen the potential impacts related to solid waste disposal 

capacity in the planning area to a level of less than significant. The proposed SOI 

amendment and GPA would not affect these conclusions. 

Conclusion 

An Addendum, pursuant to Section 15164 of the CEQA Guidelines, was utilized to evaluate 

the implications, if any, of the City-initiated General Plan amendments. The City has found 

that the Addendum is the appropriate level of CEQA review, because none of the triggers for 

a Subsequent EIR (pursuant to Section 15162 of the Guidelines) have been met. 

The land use changes proposed by the SOI and General Plan amendments do not result in 

“substantial changes” to the General Plan, nor has the information resulted in “substantial 

changes” to the certified EIR. This information will not result in “major revisions” to the 

certified EIR, as evidenced by the information provided above.  

The information and land use changes proposed by the City, although not known at the time 

of certification of the EIR, are not considered of “substantial importance.” The information 

does not result in one or more significant effects, does not identify effects that are 

substantially more severe than previously reported, does not require additional mitigation 

measures or alternatives, and does not require additional mitigation or alternatives that are 

considerable different than previously suggested. 

For these reasons, a subsequent EIR or recirculation of this material is not warranted. The 

City Council is required to consider this information with the certified Final EIR, however, 

prior to making a final decision on the proposed land use changes. 



GENERAL PLAN EIR ADDENDUM 

26   

This side intentionally left blank. 

 

 



             

            7.3 
 

 

 ATTACHMENT 3 

 

Draft 2014 Municipal Service Review  

and Sphere of Influence Study  

for the City of Gonzales 



LAFCO of Monterey County 
   _ 

 

                           LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY 

                       
 
 

 
 

Public Review Draft  
 
2014 Municipal Service Review and  
Sphere of Influence Study:  
 
City of Gonzales  
 
 
 
 
September 2014  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This page left blank intentionally.] 
  

2                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



 

 

Table of Contents 

                                                                                                                                                                                             Page 

City of Gonzales - At A Glance ...................................................................................................................................... 5 

Executive Summary and Recommendations ............................................................................................................... 6 

How This Report is Organized ..................................................................................................................................... 11 

Population and Growth  ................................................................................................................................................. 11 

Boundaries and Sphere of Influence…………………………………………………………………………………………..……………………………..12 

Services, Facilities, and Operations .............................................................................................................................. 17 

Governance / Transparency and Accountability / Shared Services ...................................................................... 19 

Finances ............................................................................................................................................................................. 20 

Future Opportunities and Challenges ........................................................................................................................ 23 

Municipal Service Review Determinations ............................................................................................................... 24 

Sphere of Influence Determinations ............................................................................................................................ 26 

Sources and Acknowledgements…………………………………………………………….……………………………………………………….……....27 

 

Figures and Tables 

Figure 1: Map of Existing City Boundaries and Sphere of Influence……………………………….…………….…………………...8 

Figure 2: Map of Proposed Additions to the Sphere of Influence…………..………………………………….……………….……....9 

Figure 3: Map of Proposed City Boundaries and Sphere of Influence………………………………………………………….…..10  

Table 1: Historic Population Growth………………………………..……………………………………….……………………….………………..…..11 

Table 2: AMBAG Projected Population Growth and Jobs Growth …..………………………………………….……..….……... 12 

Table 3: Total Budgeted Expenditures:  Fiscal Year 2012-13 through 2014-15………….…………….……..…….………...20 

Table 4: Budgeted General Fund Revenues by Source:  Fiscal Year 2012-13 through 2014-15...………....……….21 

Table 5: Budgeted General Fund Expenditures by Department:  FY 2012-13 through 2014-15…………….…....22 

 

Appendix 

Appendix 1: City-County Memorandum of Agreement (Summary Table)…………………………………………………….28  

LAFCO of Monterey County  3                                                                    
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This page left blank intentionally.] 
  

4                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



2014 MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW AND SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY 
FOR THE CITY OF GONZALES 

 

City of Gonzales – At A Glance 

Incorporation Date January 1947  

Legal Authority Government Code Title 4 (General Law City) 

City Council 
Mayor and four City Council Members elected at-large; Mayor has a 
2-year term and Council Members have staggered four-year terms 

City Area 

1,267 acres (1.98 square miles) within the City Limits and an 
additional 53 acres within the City’s current Sphere of Influence.  

2014 Sphere of Influence proposal: an additional 2,038 acres beyond 
existing City Limits 

Population  8,383 (January 1, 2014 California Department of Finance estimate)  

Budget (Fiscal Year 
2014-2015) 

$ 13,946,908  

Vision Statement 
Gonzales will continue to be a safe, clean, family-friendly 
community, diverse in its heritage and committed to working 
collaboratively to preserve and retain its small town charm. 

Mission Statement 

The City Council and Staff of the City of Gonzales will realize our 
vision by providing the leadership, commitment and resources 
necessary to provide excellent services that enhance the quality of 
life of our diverse community. 

City services will be delivered in a cost-effective, respectful and 
friendly manner to insure the safety and well-being of the residents 
and the promotion of business, recreational, housing and 
employment opportunities in an environmentally sustainable 
manner. 

Strong fiscal policies allow us to provide appropriate infrastructure 
for Public Safety, Housing, Recreation, Environment and Education.  

City Manager René L. Mendez 

Contact Information 
P. O. Box 647 
147 Fourth Street 
Gonzales, CA  93926 

Website http://www.ci.gonzales.ca.us  

LAFCO of Monterey County  5                                                                    
  

http://www.ci.gonzales.ca.us/


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

This Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study provides information about the services and 
boundaries of the City of Gonzales.  The report is for use by the Local Agency Formation Commission in 
conducting a statutorily required review and update process.  The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act requires 
that the Commission conduct periodic reviews and updates of Spheres of Influence of all cities and special 
districts in Monterey County (Gov. Code section 56425).  It also requires LAFCO to conduct a review of 
municipal services before adopting Sphere updates (Government Code section 56430).  The last service 
review of the City was completed in September 2010, as part of a review of all Salinas Valley cities. 

City Services 

The City of Gonzales, located within the fertile Salinas Valley, provides a full range of municipal services 
to its approximately 8,400 residents. The City is efficiently managed, with adequate reserves and stable 
year-over-year and General Fund expenditures. In recent years, the City has successfully developed an ag-
industrial economic base that provides opportunities for significant employment and investment in the 
City. The City administration has shown a serious commitment toward implementing sustainability 
practices through a comprehensive “Gonzales Grows Green Sustainable Community Initiative” (“G3”) that 
aims to promote economic viability, environmental responsibility, and social equity.  The City’s General 
Plan includes policies intended to ensure adequate service provision for future residents and employment 
centers.  

Current City Boundaries and Sphere of Influence 

The City’s Sphere of Influence was last updated in April 1997 to implement the General Plan adopted in 
1996. No Sphere amendments have been processed since then, but there have been several annexations, 
including two areas, totaling approximately 215 acres, approved in 2006.  Except for vacant land in those 
two annexation areas, the existing City limits are largely built out. The current Sphere contains 
approximately 50 acres outside of the City limits and is not adequate for the City’s probable long-term 
expansion needs.   

2010 General Plan and 2014 City-County Memorandum of Agreement 

In 2010, the City of Gonzales adopted a comprehensive General Plan update that focuses substantial future 
urban development to the east of Highway 101, thereby enabling preservation of the majority of the most 
productive agricultural soils near the City.   In addition to conserving and protecting agriculture and open 
space resources, the General Plan contains policy and implementation programs to guide land use 
development projects, maintain the safety and welfare of Gonzales citizens, guide the cost effective and 
efficient delivery of public infrastructure and services, and enhance community sustainability efforts. The 
General Plan’s certified Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) includes numerous mitigation measures 
that will help ensure implementation of the City’s General Plan policies. The planning horizon of the 
General Plan is long term, extending beyond a 20-year time frame.  

In March and April 2014, in fulfillment of State law requirements for a City-County consultation process 
prior to a City’s application for a Sphere of Influence amendment, the County of Monterey and the City 
each acted to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement in support of implementing the City’s adopted 2010 
General Plan.  

The City-County MOA is an exemplary model of interagency cooperation and good government. The 
MOA’s fundamental objective is to balance the preservation of open space and prime agricultural lands 
with the need for orderly City growth.  It delineates a large portion of the General Planning area as the 
City’s proposed Sphere of Influence. However, it also provides for permanent agricultural edges to be 
provided along the City’s north, south, and west edges, growing the City toward the foothills and 
protecting the highest-quality agricultural lands in lower-lying areas. As part of the agreement, the City 

6                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



will provide for a clear, logical urban boundary on the City’s southern edge by amending its General Plan 
to remove previously planned urban land use designations south of Gloria Road. The MOA commits 
Gonzales to establish a comprehensive mitigation program for the loss of agricultural lands within the 
City’s urban growth area. These agricultural measures will be implemented as part of Specific Plan 
processes, and will be detailed in future annexation applications to LAFCO.  The MOA identifies compact, 
sustainable, “City-centered,” Specific Plan-based development as the City’s guiding vision for development 
of future neighborhoods.  It also contains agreements designating truck routes, developing a Traffic Impact 
Fee Program, and requiring the accrual of property tax benefits to the County for any City annexations 
inconsistent with the MOA.   

State law provides that “The Commission shall give great weight to the agreement [City-County 
consultation MOA] to the extent that it is consistent with Commission policies.” LAFCO staff has 
reviewed the MOA for consistency with LAFCO of Monterey County’s locally adopted policies for Spheres 
of Influence.  This consistency finding can be made due to a balance of important public tradeoffs and 
benefits that the MOA will accomplish over time. Accordingly, the MOA provides a strong basis for 
delineating a large portion of the Gonzales General Planning area as the City’s Sphere of Influence.  

City’s Sphere of Influence Proposal 

In July 2014, the City submitted a proposal for a Sphere of Influence amendment consistent with the 
Gonzales 2010 General Plan and the 2014 City-County MOA. The City’s proposal would add 
approximately 2,038 acres to its Sphere of Influence.  The City’s Sphere expansion proposal is divided into 
three areas1: 

1. 1,907 acres to the east of the existing City boundary and Sphere of Influence.  This area is contained 
within the City’s Urban Growth Boundary designated in the Gonzales 2010 General Plan.  
(Following discussions with the County, the City is removing the Urban Growth designation 
from 182.5 acres that had been designated in the General Plan.); 

2. Approximately 97.6 acres of land on the City’s west side, south of Gonzales River Road, that is 
planned for conversion from agricultural use to commercial and industrial use, and 

3. A 5.5-acre parcel, adjacent to the City’s wastewater treatment plant, planned for a future plant 
expansion. 

On balance, the City of Gonzales’ Sphere of Influence proposal is reasonable in the comprehensive context 
of the City-County MOA, the adopted General Plan policies and the certified EIR. It is also consistent with 
AMBAG growth projections, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Act, LAFCO’s legislative purposes and the 
Commission’s locally adopted policies.  These conclusions are discussed in more detail in this study. 

Recommended Actions 

The 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of Gonzales evaluates the City’s 
proposal in relation to likely future needs for urban services and boundaries. Based on the analysis and 
recommendations in the study, the Executive Officer recommends adoption of a resolution to: 

• Find the Study exempt from provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
under Sections 15306 and 15061(b)(3) of the State CEQA Guidelines; and 

• Approve the 2014 Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Study for the City of 
Gonzales.  

1 The listed acreages of the three areas do not add up to the total Sphere of Influence expansion of 2,038 acres.  The 
City’s application lists an additional 28 acres that is attributed to rights of way. 

LAFCO of Monterey County  7                                                                    
  

                                                           



Figure 1 
Map of Existing City Boundaries and Sphere of Influence 

 

 
 

8                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



Figure 2 
Map of Proposed Additions to the Sphere of Influence 

 

  

 

LAFCO of Monterey County  9                                                                    
  



Figure 3 
Map of Proposed City Boundaries and Sphere of Influence 

  

10                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



HOW THIS REPORT IS ORGANIZED 

Information in this report complies with the Commission’s statutory requirements and is also intended 
to support the City’s mission. The report reviews the status of the City’s Sphere of Influence and 
boundaries. It presents a brief history of the City and describes the City’s facilities and operations, 
governance and finances. The report examines future challenges facing the City. It concludes with 
recommended determinations as required by law and with acknowledgements and source references. 

POPULATION AND GROWTH 

The City is located along Highway 101, 17 miles south of Salinas and nine miles north of Soledad.  The 
Southern Pacific Railroad laid tracks through the area in 1872. Later, a depot was built to service freight 
and passenger trains.  Cattle and grain raising dominated the area until the 1890s when Swiss immigrants 
founded dairies.  In the 1920s, dairy farming gave way to vegetable crops which thrived because of rich soils 
and advancements in irrigation, machinery and transportation.  In January 1947, Gonzales residents voted 
to incorporate the City. 

In 1894, the community of Gonzales had an estimated population of 500 residents.  By 1960, approximately 
2,100 people lived in the City.  In the last fifty years, the City’s population experienced the fastest growth 
in the 1980s and 1990s.  Over each of those two decades, the population rose in excess of 60%.  The rate of 
growth slowed to eight percent in the early 2000s.  According to the California Department of Finance, the 
City’s rate of population increase has slowed further since 2010. 

Table 1 
City of Gonzales:  Historic Population Growth 

 Year Population Decennial Percent Increase 
1960 2,138 ------ 
1970 2,575 20% 
1980 2,891 12% 
1990 4,660 61% 
2000 7,564 62% 
2010 8,187 8% 
2014 8,383 6% 

Note:  All population figures are from the U.S. Census Bureau, except for 2014 which is an estimate from the California 
Department of Finance.  The percent increase from 2010 to 2014 has been multiplied by 2.5 to extrapolate the percent 
increase over a ten year period. 

On June 11, 2014, the Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) adopted a Regional 
Growth Forecast through 2035.  This forecast was developed to inform AMBAG’s regional planning 
processes and to assist local cities and special districts for local and subregional planning.  AMBAG has 
primarily based these projections on anticipated employment growth. 

As shown in table 2, below, the Regional Growth Forecast projects significant population and jobs growth 
in Gonzales through the year 2035 and particularly within the current decade.  By 2020, the City’s 
population is projected to grow by 63% to 13,340.  By 2035, the City’s population is projected to increase 
by 136% to 19,333. This population growth compares to a 19% projected increase throughout all of 
Monterey County (to 495,086 by 2035).  Gonzales’ projected growth is also significantly higher than the 
projected 38% growth for the other three southern Salinas Valley cities.   

AMBAG bases its projections of Gonzales’ population growth on an anticipated expansion of employment 
opportunities within the City.  As Table 2 shows, projected job growth in Gonzales is much higher than 
for other nearby cities and for the County as a whole. Gonzales job growth is projected to come from build-

LAFCO of Monterey County  11                                                                    
  



out of its existing industrial park and the industrial lands proposed within the expanded Sphere of 
Influence. 

Table 2 
City of Gonzales:   

AMBAG Projected Population Growth and Jobs Growth 

 2010 2020 2025 2030 2035 

Change  
over  

Forecast 
Period 

Monterey 
County (all) 

Population 
Jobs 

415,057 
308,400 

447,516 
344,500 

463,884 
353,600 

479,487 
362,900 

495,086 
372,800 

19.3% 
20.1% 

Gonzales 
Population 

Jobs 
8,187 

2,922 
13,340 
4,084 

13,955 
4,416 

16,194 
4,802 

19,333 
5,234 

136.1% 
79.1% 

Greenfield, 
King City, & 
Soledad 

Population 
Jobs 

54,942 
13,779 

67,225 
15,279 

70,509 
15,780 

73,433 
16,264 

75,857 
16,674 

38.0% 
20.1% 

Source:  “2014 Regional Growth Forecast,” Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments, Adopted June 11, 2014. 

BOUNDARIES AND SPHERE OF INFLUENCE  

Existing Boundaries and Sphere of Influence 

In 1997, the Gonzales Sphere of Influence was updated to implement the City’s 1996 General Plan.  No 
major updates to the City’s Sphere amendments have been initiated since then, although LAFCO has 
approved several annexations and Sphere amendments related to those parcels.   

Areas that were annexed to Gonzales in 20062 remain undeveloped.  The largest area, approximately 180 
acres on the east side of Highway 101, is residentially zoned. The other undeveloped portion of the 2006 
annexation is approximately 32 acres of industrially zoned land on the City’s northwestern side. The 2010 
Service Review adopted by LAFCO for the City of Gonzales stated that “except for vacant land in those 
two [recent] annexation areas, the city is largely built out.” 

The 2010 Service Review also noted that the City’s Sphere contains only around 50 acres beyond existing 
City limits, an inadequate area to meet the City’s long-term expansion needs. 

The Gonzales 2010 General Plan estimated that build-out of the City’s existing, 1997-established Sphere of 
Influence could accommodate a total City population of 12,000. This scenario would represent a 
population increase of about 43% from its current level of 8,400.   

The Gonzales 2010 General Plan 

The City is currently proposing a 2,038-acre expansion of its Sphere of Influence.  The current proposal is 
the product of a seven-year process for developing the City General Plan and a subsequent four-year 
consultation process between the City and the County of Monterey, with input from LAFCO.  These 
processes culminated in the 2011 City adoption of the General Plan and approval of a City/County 
Memorandum of Agreement for Orderly Planning by the County and City in the spring of 2014.  

2 Annexation and Sphere of Influence Amendment, File No. 05-13, effective February 27, 2006. 

12                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 

                                                           



The City’s 2010 General Plan contains policy and implementation programs to guide land use development 
projects, maintain the safety and welfare of Gonzales citizens, conserve and protect open space resources, 
guide the cost effective and efficient delivery of public infrastructure and services and enhance community 
sustainability efforts. 

The Gonzales 2010 General Plan establishes a long-term, but indeterminate, planning horizon for the City 
in order to: 

• Create a long-term vision to guide new development so that ultimately the increments of growth 
form into a coherent whole, becoming something more than a patchwork of large subdivisions; 

• Preserve key sites essential to the long-term economic health of the City; 

• Ensure a competitive market for development and avoid the monopolization of the City’s future 
development by any one of the large landowners within the General Plan area, and 

• Establish the ultimate boundaries of the City in order to identify the adjoining agricultural areas 
that should be reserved for permanent agricultural use. 

City/County Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 

City/County Consultation Process 

Following City Council adoption of the General Plan, the City met with the County as required by Section 
56425 of the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg (CKH) Act.  This portion of the State Government Code requires a 
City to meet with the County and “discuss the proposed new boundaries of the Sphere and explore 
methods to reach agreement on development standards and planning and zoning requirements . . . to 
ensure that development . . . promotes the logical and orderly development of the areas within the Sphere.”  

After detailed discussions over a period of several years, the County Board of Supervisors and the City 
Council took separate actions to enter into a City/County Memorandum of Agreement Regarding Orderly 
Planning, Growth, and Development (“MOA”) in March and April 2014. The agreement is summarized in 
table form as Appendix 1 to this report. Its full text will be provided to the Commission under a separate 
cover.  

MOA Contents 

The approved City-County MOA is a significant milestone in City-County cooperation on planning-, 
growth-, and development-related issues resulting from the expansion of the boundaries of a City’s Sphere 
of Influence. At its core, the MOA seeks to balance the preservation of open space and prime agricultural 
lands with the need for orderly City growth. Perhaps most noteworthy among its achievements, the City-
County MOA for Gonzales provides for a permanent agricultural edge on three sides of the City, with long-
term growth directed toward the eastern foothills, away from the highest quality farmland lower-lying 
areas in the Salinas Valley. Significantly, the MOA also removes the City’s previously planned urban land 
uses south of Gloria Road, thereby clearly delineating an urban boundary between urbanized incorporated 
areas and open agricultural fields south of Gloria Road in the unincorporated County. The MOA commits 
the City to establish a comprehensive mitigation program for the loss of agricultural lands within the City’s 
urban growth area. 

The MOA also identifies compact, sustainable, “City-centered,” Specific Plan-based development as the 
City’s guiding vision for development of future neighborhoods.  It contains agreements designating truck 
routes, developing a Traffic Impact Fee Program, and requiring the accrual of property tax benefits to the 
County for any City annexations inconsistent with the MOA. 

LAFCO of Monterey County  13                                                                    
  



The MOA is structured in nine sections, reflecting the primary growth and development issues that the 
City and the County identified and discussed during their negotiations:  

1. Logical and Orderly Development 

2. Direction of Future development 

3. Specific Planning Actions 

4. Development Phasing and Annexations 

5. Agricultural Land Compatibility 

6. Agricultural Land Conservation Program 

7. Traffic Mitigation Fees 

8. Tax Sharing 

9. Environmental Review, Public Hearing, and Decision-Making 

The City-County MOA is an exemplary model of interagency cooperation and good government. As such, 
it was highlighted at the April 2014 California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions 
(CALAFCO) staff workshop, in an educational session co-presented by the LAFCO Executive Officer and 
Gonzales Community development Director Thomas Truszkowski.   

Land Swap Agreement 

The MOA outlines two areas to be removed from the General Plan’s “Urban Growth Area” in developing 
the City’s Sphere of Influence proposal:  an area of 182.5 acres south of Gloria Road and a 41-acre parcel on 
the City’s northern edge, west of Highway 101. As a result of this agreement, Gloria Road will provide a 
clear, recognizable, and logical boundary between developed (City) and undeveloped (unincorporated) 
lands along the City’s southern edge in the future.   

To partially compensate for the removal of job-generating lands south of Gloria Road, the City and County 
agreed to add approximately 95 acres adjacent to existing industrial lands on the City’s west side to the 
Urban Growth Area.  The agreed-upon modifications have been incorporated into the current proposal. If 
LAFCO approves the Sphere of Influence amendment as proposed, the City will designate the land for 
future industrial and commercial uses and will make the other necessary adjustments to bring its General 
Plan into conformance with the MOA.  

MOA’s Conformance to Locally Adopted LAFCO Policies 

The approved agreement provides a strong basis for delineating a logical and appropriate Sphere of 
Influence for the City of Gonzales. LAFCO staff has reviewed the City-County MOA and has determined 
it to be consistent with LAFCO of Monterey County’s adopted Policy Guidelines for Sphere of Influence 
proposals. The MOA’s conformance to the most applicable provisions of the Policy Guidelines is 
summarized below.   

• “LAFCO intends that its Sphere of Influence determination will serve as a master plan for the 
future organization of local government within the County. The spheres shall be used to 
discourage urban sprawl; limit proliferation of local governmental agencies; encourage efficiency, 
economy and orderly changes in local government; promote compact, community centered urban 
development; and minimize adverse impacts on lands classified as prime agriculture.” (LAFCO 
Policy Guideline #1 for Spheres of Influence) 

The MOA identifies specific City-County goals, objectives, and commitments that are closely aligned with LAFCO’s 
policy language in these areas, with particular emphasis on City-centered growth and preservation of agricultural 
lands. As annexations are proposed in the future, subject to LAFCO review and approval, the City’s adopted General 
Plan policies and implementing actions will help ensure that the MOA’s agreed-upon terms are carried out.    

14                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



Like the Gonzales General Plan, the MOA contains important provisions for the protection of high-quality 
agricultural land.  The MOA bases these provisions on agricultural preservation policies contained in Implementing 
Actions in the City’s adopted General Plan.  These actions include focusing urban growth to the east to protect the 
highest-quality agricultural lands, encouraging agriculture as an interim use on undeveloped parcels, establishing 
agricultural buffers, and requiring new development to contribute to the cost of purchasing additional agricultural 
conservation easements beyond the permanent edges identified in the MOA.  

• “The adopted Sphere of Influence shall reflect City and County General Plans, plans of regional 
agencies, growth management policies, annexation policies, resource management policies, and 
any other policies related to ultimate boundary or service area of an affected agency unless those 
plans or policies conflict with the legislative intent of the Act.” (LAFCO Policy Guideline #7 for 
Spheres of Influence) 

The MOA is the culmination of a multiyear effort to carefully identify those areas that are most appropriate for 
eventual annexation and development. Under the MOA, the City has committed to modify its existing General Plan 
designations on several parcels in order to implement the MOA’s goals. There are no anticipated conflicts with any 
other agency’s plans, policies, boundaries, or Spheres of Influence.  

• “LAFCO will encourage those proposals where the affected jurisdiction has achieved water savings 
or new water sources elsewhere that will off-set increases in water use in the project site that 
would be caused by the proposal.” (LAFCO Policies and Procedures Part D.X: Groundwater 
Standards) 

The certified, program-level  Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the City’s 2010 General Plan determined that 
the policies and implementing actions of the 2010 General Plan, in tandem with the requirements for collaborative 
planning and documentation of water sources (required by Senate Bill 610, including the preparation of water supply 
assessments), serve to protect groundwater supplies and to reduce the environmental effects associated with 
supplying water to the planning area to a less-than-significant level. The 2014 EIR Addendum prepared for the 
currently proposed Sphere expansion confirmed the potential impact to be less-than-significant.   

No annexations or development are proposed at this time. Future annexation and development of any areas within 
the current Sphere expansion proposal would require preparation of a specific plan, which would include plans for 
services and facilities that would be required to be in compliance with the City’s planning policies on water 
management. Preparation and approval of a “project-level,” site-specific environmental clearance will also be 
required. Each annexation will also be subject to LAFCO approval, including review for conformance with LAFCO’s 
adopted groundwater management policies applicable to City annexations.  

•  “Monterey County LAFCO shall consider as part of its decision whether the City in which the 
annexation or Sphere of Influence amendment is proposed has included certain goals, policies, and 
objectives into its General Plan that encourage mixed uses, mixed densities, and development 
patterns that will result in increased efficiency of land use, and that encourages and provides 
planned, well-ordered, efficient urban development patterns.” (LAFCO Policies and Procedures 
Part D.XIII: Efficient Urban Development Patterns) 

The adopted City of Gonzales General Plan includes a detailed framework of goals, policies, and objectives in strong 
support of creating a diverse, self-sustaining, vibrant, community that focuses growth inward, maintains small-town 
characteristics., discourages urban sprawl, and preserves the most productive lands for agricultural uses. 

• “LAFCO, in recognition of the mandated requirements for considering impacts on open space 
lands and agricultural lands, will develop and determine Spheres of Influence for Cities and urban 

LAFCO of Monterey County  15                                                                    
  



service districts in such a manner as to promote the long-term preservation and protection of this 
County's Resources.” (LAFCO Policy Guideline #9 for Spheres of Influence) and 

“Applications… for the establishment or any change to a Sphere of Influence or urban service area 
shall provide for planned, well-ordered, efficient urban development patterns with appropriate 
consideration of preserving open-space and agricultural lands within those patterns.” (LAFCO 
Policies and Procedures Part E: Preservation of Open Space and Agricultural Lands) 

Fundamentally, the City’s Sphere expansion proposal is intended to grow the City eastward in order to preserve areas 
of the highest-quality soils for permanent agricultural uses. Sections 5 and 6 of the MOA contain the City’s goal, 
objectives, and commitments regarding impacts of development on agricultural lands. The identified requirements 
include the use of agricultural buffers, phasing, and preparation of Specific Plans (geared to unique site conditions) 
to minimize the impacts of development on nearby agricultural operations. To mitigate the loss of agricultural lands 
to future, post-annexation development, the City commits to establish an Agricultural Land Conservation Program 
that will require the implementation of conservation easements or other specified forms of mitigation.  

These provisions outlined above are consistent with LAFCO’s adopted policies. No lands are currently proposed for 
annexation or development. A specific mitigation proposal for development areas within the proposed Sphere 
expansion will be part of LAFCO’s purview, as part of future annexation proposals, before any development of areas 
within the Sphere proposal may occur. 

• “Proposals must demonstrate through both quantitative and qualitative methods the relationship 
between the Proposal and the surplus or deficiency of local and county-wide housing supply and 
demand, and employment availability and creation. Additionally, the Proposal must demonstrate 
how its pattern of land use and transportation complements local and regional objectives and goals 
for the improvement of air quality and reduction of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions and local 
vehicle miles traveled (VMT).”  (LAFCO Policies and Procedures, Part F:  Housing and Jobs) 

According to the City of Gonzales General Plan, the City has approximately 1,060 jobs and 2,070 housing units 
(approximate jobs-housing balance of 1:2). The City’s proposed Sphere expansion would facilitate implementation of 
the City’s General Plan, which envisions the creation of 5,400 new jobs and 7,700 new housing units by 2035. At 
buildout of the General Plan, there would be 6,460 jobs and 9,770 housing units (approximate jobs-housing balance 
of 1:1.5). Therefore, with build-out of the General Plan, the City’s jobs housing balance will improve.  

The City has planned enough housing to satisfy its share of AMBAG’s regional housing needs allocation. The City 
prepared its Housing Element as part of the 2010 General Plan, and the State Housing and Community Development 
Department completed its review in 2009, in advance of City adoption of the General Plan. 

The Gonzales General Plan calls for most future residential growth within the City to be accomplished in new 
neighborhoods, which will contain neighborhood commercial, schools, parks, and a mix of residential densities. The 
neighborhoods are to be implemented through the creation of specific plans, and designed and built on a scale that is 
complementary to the City’s small town character. The General Plan requires the neighborhoods to fall within a 
range of 125 to 400 acres each; the strategy is to promote new development that retains the pedestrian-oriented 
characteristics of the downtown area. The improved jobs-housing balance and the planned small-scale development 
pattern is expected to reduce vehicle trips and associated air and greenhouse gas emissions. 

“Commission Shall Give Great Weight” 

As outlined in the subsection above, the City/County MOA is consistent with LAFCO of Monterey 
County’s adopted Policies and Procedures Relating to Spheres of Influence and Changes of Organization 

16                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



and Reorganization. Pursuant to Section 56425 of the CKH Act, “the Commission shall give great weight 
to the agreement to the extent that it is consistent with Commission policies in its final determination of 
the City sphere.”   

The Proposal for an Expanded Sphere of Influence 

By proposing the “land swap” changes described above in the City/County MOA, the City has proposed to 
expand its Sphere of Influence by 2,038 acres. The proposed 2,038-acre Sphere of Influence expansion 
would increase the City’s total footprint (City limits + Sphere) from its current 1,320 acres to 3,358 acres. 
These figures translate to a 154% net acreage increase over an approximately 20-year time horizon3. As 
described in the Population and Growth section, above, AMBAG is projecting a 136% net population 
increase in the current (2010-2035) forecast period that has 21 years remaining.  

A rough comparison of these two growth-related metrics suggests that the acreage of the City’s Sphere 
proposal appears somewhat higher than what might typically be warranted. However, based on the 
available data (AMBAG’s current employment and jobs projections) and the proportion of land the City’s 
General Plan designates for ag-industrial and other non-residential land uses, the City’s Sphere proposal 
appears roughly proportional with a traditional Sphere’s 20-year outlook. Future implementation of the 
current proposal will be guided by the 2014 City-County Memorandum of Agreement, described above. 
The MOA contains important commitments, especially with regard to permanent agricultural 
preservation, to ensure orderly and appropriate future growth in conformance with LAFCO’s adopted 
policies.  

The City’s Sphere expansion is proposed in three geographic areas as shown in Figure 2 on page 9: 

1. Approximately 95% of the proposed Sphere of Influence expansion is within the Urban Growth 
Boundary established in the Gonzales 2010 General Plan.  This land, east of the City limits, is 
mostly designated as Prime Farmland and farmed for vegetables and row crops.  Parcel sizes tend 
to be larger than those to the north, and there is a gentle upslope to the east. Trees are absent, save 
for the occasional clusters around farmhouses.  The General Plan’s Environmental Impact Report 
identified the removal of Prime Farmland acreage in the proposed Urban Growth Area as a 
significant and unavoidable impact for purposes of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA). Measures in the General Plan and the City/County Memorandum of Agreement, outlined 
above, will lessen the loss of farmland.   

2. Parcels containing approximately 97.6 acres on the City’s west side, south of Gonzales River Road, 
are proposed to provide some of the job-generation lost by removing the expansion south of Gloria 
Road.  Similar to the south of Gloria Road area, this area is designated as Prime Farmland and is 
actively farmed. Subsequent to the Memorandum of Agreement, the City has modified its Sphere 
expansion proposal to include an additional 2.3-acre parcel (020-031-002, shown in Figure 2, 
above) adjacent to this subarea.  The property is developed with a privately owned farmworker 
housing development in active use. Please refer to the Municipal Service Review Determinations 
section, below, for a more complete description of this site and its inclusion in the current 
proposal. 

3. A City-owned 5.5-acre parcel adjacent to the City’s wastewater treatment facility is anticipated 
to be used for future expansion of the facility.  In 2006, the City had proposed adding this parcel 
to the Sphere of Influence, and annexing it to the City.  LAFCO was unable to act on this expansion 

3 LAFCO of Monterey County’s locally adopted Policies and Procedures define a Sphere of Influence as “The area 
around a local agency eligible for annexation and extension of urban service within a twenty-year period.”  

LAFCO of Monterey County  17                                                                    
  

                                                           



at that time because the City-prepared environmental review did not include it.  Expansion of the 
treatment facility was subsequently included in the 2010 General Plan’s Environmental Impact 
Report. Inclusion of this parcel in the Sphere expansion was not discussed as part of the 
Memorandum of Agreement. 

SERVICES, FACILITIES, AND OPERATIONS 

The City of Gonzales is a full service City.  City employees provide many services including proactive 
community policing; parks, recreation facilities and programs, open space; street construction and 
maintenance; street lighting; street sweeping; landscaping and landscape maintenance; potable water; 
water treatment; water conservation; sanitary sewer collection and treatment; pump station maintenance; 
storm drain maintenance and flood control.  Volunteers, with the support of City employees, provide fire 
protection and emergency medical response. 

The following services are provided to City residents through the work of an independent agency or private 
organization: cemetery maintenance and burial services; health care; library services; trash collection; 
recycling, and landfill operation. 

The City has created the “Gonzales Grows Green Sustainable Community Initiative” (“G3”).  This initiative 
aims to promote economic viability, environmental responsibility and social equity.  The initiative outlines 
the unifying philosophy behind City efforts to become a green hub of environmental stewardship.  The 
City has adopted a Sustainability Element to its General Plan, and one of the first Climate Action Plans in 
the County.  The City actively supports the development of biodiesel and wind energy, and works to create 
public-private partnerships to bring energy efficiency and other cost savings measures to local businesses 
to improve profitability. The City also participates in a public-private partnership which produces solar 
energy at the City’s wastewater facility and a local winery.  

In July 2014, the City announced that it had begun construction of a commercial-scale wind turbine on 
land adjacent to the City’s Agricultural Industrial Business Park, as a component of the G3 program. The 
first of two wind turbines to be constructed by the City, the turbine is intended to provide a clean 
sustainable source of energy to businesses located in the Industrial Park. 

The City of Gonzales currently provides adequate services to meet the needs of the population within its 
existing Sphere. LAFCO’s 2010 Municipal Service Review for Gonzales identified no significant unmet 
service needs or deficiencies. Future development within the City and its Sphere will lead to population 
growth and the need for additional and/or expanded services.  The City’s General Plan includes policies 
intended to ensure adequate service provision for future residents.  The existing tax base, and the 
expansion of that tax base resulting from new development, will provide funding for these services.  
Development impact fees will address the capital cost of new development.  The extent, timing, and 
financing of improvements will be presented to LAFCO as part of the application process for future 
annexations of areas currently proposed for inclusion in the City’s Sphere of Influence.  

The extent of the required infrastructure expansion is outlined in the Gonzales 2010 General Plan and the 
General Plan’s background studies.  Among the areas that will require the most major investment are 
water, wastewater and transportation. The Environmental Impact Report for the 2010 General Plan 
included an analysis of the likely necessary infrastructure improvements, including expansion of the City’s 
wastewater treatment facility.  

 

18                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



GOVERNANCE / TRANSPARENCY AND ACCOUNTABILITY / SHARED SERVICES 

Governance 

The City of Gonzales is a General Law City with a Council/Manager form of government.  The Mayor and 
four City Council Members govern the City.  The Mayor is elected directly by voters every two years.  
Voters elect City Council Members at-large to staggered four-year terms. The City Council meets the first 
and third Monday of every month at 6:00 pm in the City Council Chambers in downtown Gonzales.  The 
Council holds special meetings as necessary to provide policy direction and oversight. 

Transparency and Accountability 

Each City Council meeting has a time on the agenda reserved for public comments. The Council limits 
closed session discussions to issues allowed by State law.  Public meetings and City operations are 
publicized through the media, through mailings and by use of the City website.  Videos of City Council 
meetings are available online and archived on the City’s website. City offices are open to the public during 
normal business hours, Monday through Friday.  City revenues and expenses are audited annually by a 
private auditing firm experienced in municipal finance. 

Shared Services 

As outlined in a previous section of this Service Review, the City of Gonzales has a track record of working 
with local businesses through the Gonzales Grows Green program.  The City also has a history of working 
with other local government agencies to serve residents of the South Salinas Valley. In recent years, the 
City and the Gonzales Unified School District have initiated joint programs and initiatives.  One result of 
these cooperative efforts is a jointly-financed gymnasium which opened in 2010. 

In July 2010, Gonzales also joined the Cities of Greenfield, King and Soledad in a cooperative agreement 
known as “Four Cities for Peace.”  This agreement strengthens existing partnerships and coordinated 
efforts to address the gang problem in the South Salinas Valley.  Two regional California Gang Reduction, 
Intervention and Prevention (CalGRIP) grants from the State of California facilitate implementation of the 
program. 

In January 2013, the Gonzales City Council approved an additional agreement with the other three South 
Salinas Valley cities: Soledad, Greenfield and King City.  This agreement expands on previous 
intergovernmental efforts and commits the cities to explore shared government services.   The agreement 
states that shared services can take different forms, such as the consolidation of existing services, sharing 
responsibilities for delivering services, jointly contracting for services, forming a new entity for performing 
common services, and sharing equipment and facilities.  While this agreement does not commit the four 
cities to specific actions, it signifies a seriousness about exploring shared services as a way to improve 
public services and reduce costs.   In July 2013, the City agreed to share an animal control officer with the 
City of King in the spirit of this agreement.   

  

LAFCO of Monterey County  19                                                                    
  



FINANCES 

The City Council has adopted a Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget with anticipated expenditures of $13.9 
million.  While this budget constitutes a decrease from the previous fiscal year, City budgets often include 
similar levels of fluctuation.  As with many other cities, budgeting for one-time infrastructure 
improvements and the 2012 statewide dissolution of redevelopment agencies have created wide year-to-
year variations.  Municipal reserves, primarily those in the Water and Sewer Enterprise and Street Funds, 
cover the difference between annual revenues and expenditures to fund major multi-year public works.  
This allows for long-range infrastructure planning. 

Total Expenditures and Revenues 

Table 3 outlines budgeted expenditures for the most recent three years for the City’s major funds.  The 
table illustrates the wide range of urban services provided by the City.  Within the overall budget revenues 
generally match expenditures, although shortfalls in revenues within a fiscal year can be replaced from 
reserves as needed.  Surpluses in revenues can be added to reserves.   

While the budget illustrates the City’s planned expenditures, revenue and project-scheduling constraints 
can limit actual expenditures.  Of the three years listed in Table 3, audited expenditures are only available 
for Fiscal Year 2012-2013.  Of that year’s $10.7 million budget, the City only expended $9.3 million, or 87% 
of the budgeted amount.   

 
 
 

Table 3 
City of Gonzales:  Total Budgeted Expenditures 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 through 2014-15 
 FY 2012-2013 

Adopted 
Budget 

FY 2013-2014 
Adopted 
Budget 

FY 2014-2015 
Adopted 
Budget 

Percent of 
Total 

(FY 2014-2015) 
General Fund  $    3,462,937   $    3,615,255   $        3,569,828  25.6% 

Water Fund  $    1,961,454   $    3,705,858   $        2,621,922  18.8% 
Public Safety Fund  $        556,053   $        561,883   $            510,340  3.7% 
Garbage   $        957,336   $    1,057,816   $        1,107,620  7.9% 
Community 
Development  
& Recreation  

 $        524,903   $        630,183   $            643,246  4.6% 

Impact Funds  $        582,578   $    1,318,561   $            885,894  6.4% 
Special Assessment 
Districts  

 $        498,442   $        618,552   $            567,893  4.1% 

Sewer Fund  $        864,683   $    1,442,259   $        1,508,403  10.8% 
Streets & 
Transportation  

 $        410,220   $        657,520   $            884,267  6.3% 

Successor Agency  $        902,727   $    1,293,293   $        1,315,184  9.4% 
Solar Project & 
Infrastructure   
Fund 

 $          35,000   $        304,365   $            332,311  2.4% 

TOTAL (budgeted)    $   10,756,333       $   15,205,545  $      13,946,908 100.0% 

20                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



General Fund Revenues  

Funding requirements strictly limit the uses of most City revenue.  The General Fund budget contains 
funding for most routine municipal services and is the primary source of discretionary funds available to a 
City Council.  Table 4 illustrates the General Fund’s anticipated revenue sources for the most recent three 
years.   In Fiscal Year 2014-2015, revenues are higher than normal due to the anticipated sale of surplus City 
real estate for $1.4 million, which is almost 29% of all anticipated General Fund revenues.   The next largest 
revenue sources are Other Taxes and Salinas Valley Solid Waste Authority Fee” (14%), “Sales, Use Tax, 
and Triple Flip4” (14%), Motor Vehicle In-Lieu / Vehicle License Fee Adjustment” (13%) and Property 
Taxes (10%).  Revenues not needed to cover Fiscal Year 2014-2015 expenditures will expand the end-of-
year fund balance and function as reserves. 

 

Source:  City and Successor Agency Recommended Budgets, Fiscal Years 2012-2013 through 2014-2015 

4 California voters and the legislature have approved measures which redirect a portion of the sales tax from cities to 
the State and have replaced this amount by redirecting an equal amount of property tax back to cities.  This is referred 
to as the “triple flip.” 

Table 4 
City of Gonzales: Budgeted General Fund Revenues by Source 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 through 2014-15 
 FY 2012-2013 

Adopted 
Budget 

FY 2013-2014 
Adopted 
Budget 

FY 2014-2015 
Adopted 
Budget 

Percent of Total 
(FY 2014-2015) 

Transfers In $256,400 $311,400 $307,400 25.6% 
Property Taxes $399,500 $414,500 $503,000 18.8% 
Sales, Use Tax, 
Triple Flip 

$613,000 $653,000 $680,000 3.7% 

Building 
Requirements 

$105,855 $44,360 $44,300 7.9% 

Motor Vehicle In-
Lieu/ VLF 
Adjustment 

$590,000 $592,950 $610,083 4.6% 

Other Taxes and 
SVSWA Fee 

$481,900 $477,000 $692,400 6.4% 

Use of Money & 
Property 

$97,000 $97,000 $1,397,000 4.1% 

Police Department $89,850 $179,850 $156,550 10.8% 
Fire Department $226,000 $226,000 $226,000  

Other Revenue $445,532 $400,763 $91,500  

Planning 
Department 

$14,200 $27,970 $22,200 6.3% 

Recreation Services $130,500 $177,262 $130,000 9.4% 
Intergovernmental, 
Public Works, Fines 
and Penalties 

$13,200 $13,200 $11,200 2.4% 

TOTAL $3,462,937 $3,615,255 $4,871,633 100.0% 

LAFCO of Monterey County  21                                                                    
  

                                                           



General Fund Expenditures 

Table 5 illustrates budgeted General Fund Expenditures over the most recent three years.  The City has 
adopted a Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget for General Fund expenditures of $3,569,828.  Consistent with the 
practice of many local jurisdictions, over 50% of these general funds were allocated for the City’s Police 
Department.   The next largest expense category, representing 10.3% of general fund expenditures is a 
$367,819 debt payment for the 2011 Lease Revenue Bond loan to the Gonzales Redevelopment Agency to 
refinance the 2006 RDA Tax Anticipation Note.  The City is working with the California Department of 
Finance to allow this cost as a valid obligation of the Redevelopment Agency’s Successor Agency rather 
than the City’s General Fund. If allowed, this shift would provide for potential allocation of this dollar 
amount to other General Fund expenditures or to reserves. 

Source:  City and Successor Agency Recommended Budgets, Fiscal Years 2012-2013 through 2014-2015 

City Assets 

The Basic Financial Statements for the year ending June 30, 2013 list $62.0 million as the City’s total assets 
and $10.5 million as its total liabilities.  Gonzales, therefore, has a “total net position” of $51.4 million.  This 
total net position has increased by $7.3 million since 2010.    As mentioned in the City’s audit, the long-
term “increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of any improvements or 
deteriorations in the City’s financial position.”  The largest portion of the City’s net assets in 2013, $37 
million, reflects the City’s investment in capital assets:  infrastructure, land, buildings and other 
improvements, vehicles, and equipment.   

The City’s most unrestricted and liquid asset is the fund balance of the General Fund.  The City’s audit 

Table 5 
City of Gonzales:  Budgeted General Fund Expenditures by Department 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 through 2014-15 
 FY 2012-2013 

Adopted 
Budget 

FY 2013-2014 
Adopted 
Budget 

FY 2014-2015 
Adopted 
Budget 

Percent of Total 
(FY 2014-2015) 

Police $1,715,275  $1,809,356   $        1,824,292  51.1% 
Public Works $54,570  $65,945  $66,764  1.9% 

City 
Manager/Finance 

$267,530  $289,930  $285,691  8.0% 

Fire $214,639  $216,756   $225,930  6.3% 
General Gov. Bldgs. 

&  Non-
Departmental 

$168,264  $169,081   $163,600  4.6% 

Planning $185,733  $183,232   $184,720  5.2% 
City Attorney $15,000  $35,000   $45,000  1.3% 

Parks, Recreation & 
Aquatics 

$285,723  $299,762    $331,109  9.3% 

City Council $37,545  $41,195  $40,200  1.1% 
Debt Service $385,819  $385,819  $367,819  10.3% 

Building / Fire 
Marshall 

$132,839  $99,179  $34,703  1.0% 

Contingency -------  $20,000  ------- ------- 

TOTAL $3,462,937  $3,615,255   $3,569,828 100.0% 

22                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



states that “from an administrative standpoint, it has been the goal to maintain the fund balance [of the 
General Fund] at a minimum of $1 million.”  While the audit states that the General Fund balance has 
averaged $994,370 since fiscal year 2009, it also states that this fund balance has decreased each of these 
years.  As of June 30, 2013, the audit listed the General Fund balance at $252,411, which does not include 
an allowance for receivables owed the City by the Successor Agency of the City Redevelopment Agency.    
If this adjustment is allowed, the City’s accountant estimates that the fund balance of the General Fund is 
between $800,000 and $900,000.  The City is in discussions with the State to approve the allowance as an 
enforceable obligation of the Successor Agency.  The City’s accountant estimates little change in the fund 
balance from June 2013 to June 2014. 

FUTURE OPPORTUNITIES AND CHALLENGES 

The City has shown resourcefulness in providing services.  The City has worked closely with 
neighboring cities to combat crime and is forging relationships with these cities to improve service and 
reduce costs.  The City has also initiated the progressive “Gonzales Grows Green” program which aims 
to make the City a leader in green technology and reducing carbon emissions.  The City’s resourcefulness 
will likely continue to be a resource in resolving future challenges.   

The City’s location - in the heart of prime agricultural land and just 17 miles south of Salinas – positions 
it to take advantage of the regions strong agricultural economy.  The City plans to use this advantage to 
attract business and to generate jobs for its growing population.   

At the same time, like many California municipalities, the City struggles with a shortage of revenues to 
meet needs.  The dissolution of the City’s Redevelopment Agency has left the City with fiscal obligations 
that were previously paid through redevelopment revenues.  The City, and other cities throughout the 
State are seeking a legal and/or political solution to this problem.   

The future growth and development of the City will require significant expenditures to plan, construct, 
and maintain the needed infrastructure.  Among the major issues the City will face are: 

• Water:  Will There Be Enough Water to Support the Projected Urban Growth?  

The Environmental Impact Report for the Gonzales General Plan found that anticipated 
development “could contribute to the further decline of the groundwater basin in coastal areas as 
a result of seawater intrusion.”5  This impact was found to be “less than significant” due to the 
corresponding decrease in agricultural water use and policies and implementing actions in the 
General Plan, which lessen the impact.  Specifically, General Plan Policy FS 2.1 requires the City 
to meet the water supply needs of new development without increasing the net capacity of existing 
groundwater wells that exist in the planning area. General Plan Implementing Action FS-2.1.1 
states that the City shall “permit new development only when public water can be supplied and 
delivered without threatening water supply or water quality in the rest of Gonzales.” 

LAFCO will require documentation of compliance with the General plan policies and 
implementing actions, and with requirements of the CKH Act and LAFCO’s locally adopted 
policies, when areas within the proposed Sphere of Influence amendment are proposed for 
annexation in the future. Future annexation proposal will also be subject to site-specific, 
project-level environmental review and mitigation requirements. 

• Wastewater:  Will Adequate Investment be Available to Make Needed Improvements? 

In 2001, the City adopted a Wastewater System Master Plan.  Phase 1 of this plan will 
accommodate a population of 13,000.  The cost of improving the City’s treatment plant to serve 

5 General Plan EIR, page 4-211. 

LAFCO of Monterey County  23                                                                    
  

                                                           



the expected 2010 General Plan build-out population is estimated at $25 to $30 million, not 
including the infrastructure needed to pump sewage to the plant.  An implementation plan for 
these system enhancements will be required as part of the necessary project-level CEQA 
clearances and Plans for Providing Services for future annexation proposals.   

• Transportation:  Can Highway 101 and Local Arterials Handle the Traffic Created? 

Congestion along Highway 101 can be challenging today, especially relating to the interface 
between agricultural truck traffic and general traffic.  A four-fold increase in Gonzales’ 
population and increased levels of commercial/industrial activity will put additional stress on 
the highway, interchanges, and feeder arterials.  The City is planning for the needed 
improvements to the highway and street infrastructure to enhance safety, quality of life and 
service levels.     The City has also redirected most truck traffic off City streets to improve traffic 
flow and public safety. 

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW DETERMINATIONS6 

1. Growth and Population Projections for the Affected Area 

The City of Gonzales has experienced significant growth since 1980, although this growth 
slowed significantly following the 2008 recession. The City’s existing population is 
approximately 8,400. Buildout of the 1996 General Plan would have provided for a total of 12,000 
residents on 1,200 acres.  The Gonzales 2010 General Plan provided for a potential total City 
population of 36,000 residents on around 3,600 acres.  In accordance with the City-County MOA 
discussed above, the proposed Sphere of Influence expansion provides for slightly less growth 
acreage than anticipated in the City’s 2010 General Plan. However, the amount of proposed 
residential acreage, and thus population growth potential, is unaffected by the MOA.  

The Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments projects a City population of 19,333 by the 
year 2035. The proposed Sphere expansion acreage is anticipated to provide adequate capacity, 
within its 20-year outlook, for the projected amount of residential and non-residential growth 
in Gonzales. 

2. The Location and Characteristics of Any Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities 
(“DUCs”) Within or Contiguous to the Sphere of Influence 

State law defines a DUC as a community with an annual median household income of less than 80 
percent of the statewide annual median household income.  Staff has reviewed the most recent annual 
median household income data at the Census Block Group level (the smallest Census data unit 
available), to identify areas within three miles of the City and its Sphere of Influence proposal that 
might meet this definition.  The review identified two areas as meeting the definition of a DUC:   

• Census Tract 108.04, Block Group 1, includes a northern portion of the City and an adjacent 
agricultural area that is outside the City Limits and Sphere of Influence.  There are no 
developed, or developable, unincorporated parcels in this block group that would benefit from 
being included the City’s Sphere of Influence proposal.   

• Census Tract 109.00, Block Group 1, is a portion of the City of Soledad that includes the Salinas 
Valley State Prison and the Correctional Training Facility.  Neither area is appropriate for 
inclusion in the City’s proposed Sphere expansion. 

The only developed area in the proposed Sphere expansion is an existing, inhabited farmworker 

6 Sphere of Influence determinations required per Government Code section 56430. 

24                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 

                                                           



housing development located on South Alta Street, approximately 400 feet south of Gonzales River 
Road (APN 020-031-002, approximately 2.3 acres). This parcel does not currently meet the strict 
definition of a DUC, in that the most recently reported annual median household income for the 
overall Census Block Group that includes this parcel was more than 80% of the statewide median. 
However, this farmworker housing development parcel is being included in the City’s Sphere of 
Influence expansion proposal, in keeping with the spirit of State law requirements and good public 
policy. Inclusion of this parcel in the Sphere proposal is also consistent with LAFCO policies, in that 
future annexations of lands around the site could create an inefficient unincorporated County 
“island” if the farmworker housing parcel were to be excluded from the proposal. 

LAFCO staff has received informal communication regarding ongoing issues related to the site’s 
(well-based) drinking water quality and septic system performance. These issues are being managed, 
but would likely be more appropriately addressed, in the longer term, either by connection to 
municipal water and wastewater systems or by relocating the housing development to a better-
served site. City staff has indicated that the City and the County have been in discussions for several 
years regarding potential relocation of the farmworker housing units, but lack of funding has been 
the main limitation. 

No annexations are currently proposed in the area, the City has identified no plans to annex the 
housing site, and no other changes are currently proposed to the site’s existing use or status. 
However, its inclusion in the Sphere proposal indicates that the site is likely appropriate for 
annexation within the Sphere’s approximately 20-year time horizon. In addition, should the 
Commission approve the proposed Sphere expansion, and should other adjoining parcels be proposed 
for annexation in the future, then existing State law requirements (e.g., Government Code Section 
56375) may require annexation of the housing site, if the housing site remains inhabited and if an 
updated analysis at that time determines that the site meets the definition of a DUC.7  

3. Present and Planned Capacity of Public Facilities, Adequacy of Public Services, and 
Infrastructure Needs and Deficiencies (Including Needs or Deficiencies Related to Sewers, 
Municipal and Industrial Water, and Structural Fire Protection in Any Disadvantaged 
Unincorporated Communities Within, or Contiguous to, the Sphere of Influence). 

The City of Gonzales provides a wide array of services within its boundaries as outlined in this Study.  
Applications for future annexations to the City, as annexations are proposed over time, will require 
that revenue sources will be identified to allow for the expansion of services. 

4. Financial Ability of Agency to Provide Services 

The City has established itself as a capable provider of municipal services. The Finances section 
of this Study outlines the City’s current financial conditions and outlook. 

5. Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities 

The City works closely with the three other South Salinas Valley cities:  Soledad, Greenfield and King 
City.  The City also has a close working relationship with the Gonzales Unified School District.  
These relationships are reviewed in the “Governance / Transparency and Accountability / Shared 
Services” section of this Study.  

 

7  As of 2011, passage of Senate Bill 244, which is now codified as Section 56375 of the CKH Act, requires LAFCOs to 
deny any application to annex to a city territory that is contiguous to a DUC, unless a second application is submitted 
to annex the DUC as well. 

LAFCO of Monterey County  25                                                                    
  

                                                           



6. Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Government Structure 
and Operational Efficiencies 

The City of Gonzales is a full service General Law City.  The City Council is composed of a Mayor 
and four Council Members who are elected at-large.  The City maintains an informative web page to 
inform its residents.  The City operates efficiently as outlined above in the Service Review. 

7. Any Other Matter Related to Effective or Efficient Service Delivery, As Required by 
Commission Policy 

LAFCO has reviewed its local policies and there are no other pertinent matters. 

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE DETERMINATIONS8  

Based on the information and analysis in this Study, leading to the recommended determinations in this 
section, the Study provides support for the proposed Sphere of Influence expansion of the City of Gonzales. 

1. The Present and Planned Land Uses in the Area, Including Agricultural and Open-Space Lands 

Present and planned land uses, particularly within the City’s proposed Sphere of Influence expansion, 
are discussed and evaluated in the City’s adopted 2010 General Plan, the General Plan’s certified Final 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and 2014 EIR Addendum, and in the approved 2014 City-County 
MOA for orderly planning, growth, and development based on the City’s General Plan and EIR. The 
MOA’s fundamental objective is to balance the preservation of open space and prime agricultural lands 
with the need for orderly City growth. The MOA provides for permanent agricultural edges to be 
provided along the City’s north, south, and west edges, growing the City toward the foothills and 
protecting the highest-quality agricultural lands in lower-lying areas. The MOA provides for a clear, 
logical urban boundary on the City’s southern edge by amending its General Plan to remove previously 
planned urban land use designations south of Gloria Road. The MOA commits the City to establish a 
comprehensive mitigation program for the loss of agricultural lands within the City’s urban growth 
area. On balance, the City’s Sphere of Influence proposal, including impacts to, and preservation of, 
agricultural lands is reasonable within the comprehensive context of the City-County MOA. 

2. The Present and Probable Need for Public Facilities and Services in the Area 

As outlined in this Study, areas within the proposed Sphere of Influence expansion are primarily 
agricultural lands that will only need urban services as they are incrementally annexed to the City and 
developed, subject to LAFCO approval.  The City will be obligated to provide new and services, and 
enhancements to existing services, as future annexations occur. The necessary improvements will be 
guided by the City’s adopted 2010 General Plan and certified Final EIR, the City’s future preparation 
of Specific Plans as areas are proposed for development, and by conformance to LAFCO policies 
requiring a comprehensive Plan for Providing Services at the time of each future annexation proposal. 

3. The Present Capacity of Public Facilities and Adequacy of Public Services that the Agency 
Provides or is Authorized to Provide  

The present capacity of public facilities and services within the City of Gonzales adequately meets 
the needs of City residents.  The City will undertake an expansion of these facilities and services, as 
needed, including a planned expansion of the City’s wastewater treatment plant, when individual 
subareas are proposed for annexation (subject to LAFCO approval) and development. As noted in 
#2, above, identification and implementation of the necessary future public improvements will occur 
through several mechanisms. These include, but are not limited to, the City’s previously adopted 2010 

8 Sphere of Influence determinations required per Government Code section 56425(e). 

26                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 

                                                           



General Plan and certified Final EIR, the City’s future preparation of Specific Plans, and by LAFCO 
policies requiring a comprehensive Plan for Providing Services at the annexation stage. 

4. The Existence of Any Social or Economic Communities of Interest in the Area, If the Commission 
Determines That They Are Relevant to the Agency 

The only social or economic community of interest in the area that may be relevant to the Agency or to 
the proposed Sphere of Influence expansion is the farmworker housing that is proposed for inclusion 
in the City’s Sphere of Influence.  This one-parcel development is located on South Alta Street, 
approximately 400 feet south of Gonzales River Road. The housing site’s current status and needs are 
discussed in Municipal Review Determination #2, above.  

5. The Present and Probable Need for Sewers, Municipal and Industrial Water, and Structural Fire 
Protection of Any Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities within the Existing Sphere of 
Influence. 

As outlined within the Municipal Service Review Determinations, above, there are no potential 
Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities within the City’s existing Sphere of Influence. The 
current status and needs of a potential DUC in the proposed Sphere expansion (the existing 
farmworker housing development on South Alta Street) are discussed in Municipal Review 
Determination #2, above.  

SOURCES AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

The information in this Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update was primarily 
developed in coordination with staff from the City of Gonzales.  City staff met to discuss services and 
boundaries, answered our questions, and provided audits, budgets, City agenda packets and other 
documents. LAFCO received most of the information in this report through the verbal and written 
information provided by the City.   

While LAFCO has used a large number of written resources in the preparation of the Service Review, the 
following have been key: 

a. City of Gonzales, Annual Reports, 2010 through 2013 

b. Gonzales 2010 General Plan, Adopted by Gonzales City Council, January 18, 2011; 

c. Gonzales 2010 General Plan, Environmental Impact Report, City of Gonzales, July 2010 
(prepared for the City by Coast Plans) 

d. City of Gonzales, Basic Financial Statements, Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2013; 

e. City and Successor Agency Budget, Fiscal Years 2010-11 through 2014-2015, and 

f. City/County Memorandum of Agreement for Orderly Planning, April 2014. 

These City documents, and others, can be found on the City website: www.ci.gonzales.ca.us/documents.php 

 

LAFCO of Monterey County  27                                                                    
  

http://www.ci.gonzales.ca.us/documents.php


APPENDIX 1:  CITY - COUNTY MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ( SUMMARY) 
This table, prepared by City staff, provides a summary of the content of the City and County MOA. 
The Table also presents a summary of the agreement between the parties regarding each of the nine (9) 
planning, growth and development issues discussed by the parties during the negotiation of the MOA. 
 

SECTION 1. LOGICAL & ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT 

C
IT

Y
 

 
The adoption of the City’s General Plan establishes a long 
range development plan for the City that identifies the 
“ultimate” City area that will enable the City to plan for 
efficient provision of public facilities and the delivery of 
services, provide clarity for property owners about the 
direction of future development and its extent, and direct 
development away from the best agricultural land. 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

  The County recognizes that a commitment to City- 
Centered Growth principles implies long-term reliance 
on the City to accommodate housing and other urban 
needs, and relies on the City to be able to designate 
adequate land for its needs while developing in a 
logical, compact and orderly manner. 

 

SECTION 2. DIRECTION OF FUTURE DEVELOPMENT 

C
IT

Y
 

 
The City’s proposed Sphere is embodied by the General 
Plan “New Urban Growth Boundary”, which is the area to 
be developed in the long term. The City’s General Plan 
includes provisions for compact and sustainable growth 
patterns, establishing permanent urban edges, 
demonstrates a commitment for agricultural buffers, and 
mitigation of converted agricultural land. 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 

 
The County will work with the City to manage growth, 
consult with the City on development projects in the 
nearby unincorporated area, and preserve agricultural 
land to maintain physical separation between Gonzales 
and Soledad (and the prison) to the south and Chualar to 
the north. 

 

SECTION 3. SPECIFIC PLANNING ACTIONS   

C
IT

Y
 

 
The City agrees to amend its General Plan to remove all 
Commercial, Industrial and Industrial (Urban Reserve) 
land use designations south of Gloria Road and outside of 
the proposed Sphere of Influence, as designated on the 
Effective Date of this Agreement and replace those 
designations with an Agricultural designation and the 
designation of Permanent Agricultural Edge. 

 
The City agrees to coordinate with the County and plan 
the arterial roadways along Associated Lane, Iverson 
Road and Gloria Road in a manner that supports the free- 
flow of both automobile and truck traffic, utilizing 
method(s) determined by a traffic engineer to be practical, 
including but not limited to: utilizing the existing County 
road as a frontage road/by-pass road, round-abouts, 
directional barriers or medians, trap lanes and right-turn-in 
and right-turn-out intersections. 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 

 
The Parties agree that the removal of job-generating 
land uses south of Gloria Road weakens the housing and 
jobs relationship provided in the City’s General Plan, 
and that the relationship that currently exists in the 
City’s General Plan should be maintained. Therefore, in 
exchange for the removal of the job-generating land  
uses south of Gloria Road, the County agrees to allow 
the City to pursue the designation of Assessor Parcel 
number (s) 223-021-001, 020-031-003, 020-031-004 as 
Industrial with the designation of Permanent 
Agricultural Edge along the outside of the southern and 
western boundary to prevent future extension of urban 
land uses. 

  
 

SECTION 4. DEVELOPMENT PHASING AND ANNEXATIONS 

C
IT

Y
 

 
The City’s adopted 2010 General Plan focuses future 
urban development to the east of Highway 101 and 
provides for the phasing of development through the use 
of Specific Plans. 

 
The Specific Plans will promote self-contained 
neighborhoods that are no smaller than 125 acres and no 
larger than 400 acres. Accordingly, the timing of 
annexation applications submitted for consideration by 
LAFCO will be based upon the approval by the City of a 
Specific Plan, which includes a phasing plan, a plan for 
services and public facilities and financing plans that 
demonstrate compliance with LAFCO Standards. 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 

 
The City shall refer proposals for the preparation of a 
Specific Plan within the UGB/SOI to the County 
Resource Management Agency (RMA) - Planning 
Department for informal review and comment regarding 
the potential impacts of the proposed project upon the 
adjacent unincorporated area and associated County 
facilities. Environmental documents associated with the 
Specific Plan process shall be referred to the County 
RMA - Planning Department for formal review and 
comment. 

 

28                                                                                                 CITY OF GONZALES - 2014 MSR & SPHERE STUDY - PUBLIC REVIEW DRAFT 
  
 



SECTION 5. AGRICULTURAL LAND COMPATIBILITY 
C

IT
Y

 
 

The City commitments to keep agricultural land, within its 
growth boundaries, in production as long as possible, focus 
long term growth to the east, ensure that adjacent land 
uses are compatible with agricultural land, and work with 
the County to separate agricultural truck traffic from local 
traffic. C

O
U

N
T

Y
 

 
The County is taking the lead in drafting a County-wide 
Agricultural Land Mitigation Program that address the 
loss of agricultural land due to the development and 
conversion of land to urban uses. The County is also 
taking the lead in drafting a County-wide Agricultural 
Buffer Program to ensure compatibility of urban land 
uses with agricultural land uses in the unincorporated 
area. 

 

SECTION 6. AGRICULTURAL LAND CONSERVATION PROGRAM 

C
IT

Y
 

 
Both parties intend to preserve agricultural land around 
the City to ensure viability of the agricultural economy. 
The parties agree to explore the utilization of permanent 
agricultural easements as a tool to assist in that goal. Within 
the Section, the City presents its program to mitigate loss 
of valuable agricultural land and provides guidance on 
how and when the program will be implemented. 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 

 
The County agrees to the cessation of the City’s 
Agricultural Land Conservation Program if permanent 
agricultural easements are established on the City’s 
North, West and South boundaries. 

 

SECTION 7. TRAFFIC MITIGATION FEES   

C
IT

Y
 

 
The City agrees to consider adoption of the County’s 
impact fee program, as may be amended from time to 
time, to fund improvements to County roads listed in the 
program. Until the Impact Fee is established, the City 
agrees to ensure that any new development project in the 
incorporated area, pursuant to the City’s General Plan, 
that causes traffic impacts on local roads in the nearby 
unincorporated area, will pay its pro rata fair share to the 
County as mitigation for impacts on County roads. 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 
 

The County agrees to prepare and consider a Traffic 
Impact Fee that would include a Greater Gonzales Area 
Zone within 18 months of the effective date of the 
adoption of the Sphere of Influence by LAFCO. 

 
The County agrees that for any development within the 
City’s Planning Area Boundary as shown on the City’s 
Land Use Diagram, the County will consult with the 
City to determine if there are traffic impacts to the City. 
In the event that there are traffic impacts to the City, the 
County will require the development to pay its pro rata 
fair share to the City as mitigation of impacts on City 
roads. 

  
 

SECTION 8. TAX SHARING   

C
IT

Y
 

 
The City agrees, to the extent allowed by law that all local 
taxes, for any annexation that is not consistent with the 
MOA, shall not accrue to the benefit of the County. 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

  The County agrees to discuss with the City the existing 
Master Tax Sharing Agreement prior to any annexation, 
except all land within the Sphere of Influence that exists 
today. 

  
 

SECTION 9.  ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW, PUBLIC HEARING & DECISION-MAKING   

C
IT

Y
 

 
The parties recognize the need for California 
Environmental Quality Act review, public hearings, and 
public outreach prior to any binding decisions. It 
recognizes that the MOA is a document that states 
tentative policy commitments until all legal steps have 
been completed. 

C
O

U
N

T
Y

 

 
See description within the City column. 

  
 

 

The full text of the MOA, and related staff reports, are available on line at: 
• https://monterey.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=1685470&GUID=E99FB929-1EE6-

4BC3-8595-B254723022DA   (County of Monterey) 
• http://www.ci.gonzales.ca.us/cms-assets/documents/159812-55368.04-07-14-cc-agenda-

packet.pdf  (City of Gonzales) 

LAFCO of Monterey County  29                                                                    
  

https://monterey.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=1685470&GUID=E99FB929-1EE6-4BC3-8595-B254723022DA
https://monterey.legistar.com/LegislationDetail.aspx?ID=1685470&GUID=E99FB929-1EE6-4BC3-8595-B254723022DA
http://www.ci.gonzales.ca.us/cms-assets/documents/159812-55368.04-07-14-cc-agenda-packet.pdf
http://www.ci.gonzales.ca.us/cms-assets/documents/159812-55368.04-07-14-cc-agenda-packet.pdf


             

            7.4 
 

 

ATTACHMENT 4 

 

Map of Gonzales Area Farmland  

and  
     Agricultural Resources 

 

 



£¤

  G
ONZALES RIVER RD

  ALTA ST

CORDA RD

JO
HNSON CYN RD

OLD STAGE RD

ASSOCIATED LN

FANOE  RD

RIVER
 R

D

GONZALES

IVERSON RD

Salinas River

Farmland & Agricultural Resources

Map Prepared: September 2011

Ü
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

P.O. Box 1369
Salinas, CA 93902
Telephone (831) 754-5838

132 W. Gabilan St., Suite 102
Salinas, CA 93901

FAX (831) 754-5831

GONZALES AREA

£¤101

LAFCO of Monterey County

City Limits

Sphere of Influence

Agricultural Conservation Easement

Williamson Act Land

Parcel

Important Farmland Categories (2010)
Prime Farmland

Farmland of Statewide Importance

Unique Farmland

Grazing Land

Urban and Built Up Land

Other Land

Agricultural Conservation Easement
& Williamson Act Land

ATTACHMENT 4



             

            7.5 
 

ATTACHMENT 5 

 

City of Gonzales and County of Monterey 

Memorandum of Agreement  
 

 

 

 


































	A - rough draft agendapkt 9-23-14
	1. Draft Minutes Cov Sht
	3. Draft  Registers Cov Sht
	3.1 Attach 2014 May Warrant Register
	3.2 Attach 2014 June Warrant Register
	3.3 Attach 2014 July Warrant Register
	July 2014

	3.4 Attach 2014 August Warrant Register
	4. EO Agrm - Amend 5 Cov Sht
	5. CALAFCO-ReptonActiv Cov Sht
	5.0 CALAFCO Activities EO report  092214 OK
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer


	5.1 Attach Jul 2014_CALAFCO Quarterly
	5.2 Attach CALAFCO Conference Program
	5.3 Attach Legislative Committee Update_08_26_14
	6. Prop LAFCO Ctte Assignments Cov Sht
	6.  Proposed Ctte Appointments EOR 9-22-14
	KATE McKENNA, AICP

	6.1 Attach Proposed 2014-15 Commission Cttes 9-22-14
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	7.1 Reso tab
	7.1 Attach Gonzales draft resolution
	7.2 City of Gonzales - 2014 EIR Addendum tab
	7.2 Attach Gonzales EIR Addendum
	7.3 MSR-SOI 2014 Study Tab
	7.3 Gonzales MSR-SOI public review draft
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY
	Executive Summary and Recommendations
	How This Report is Organized
	Population and Growth
	Services, Facilities, and Operations
	Governance / Transparency and Accountability / Shared Services
	1. Growth and Population Projections for the Affected Area
	4. Financial Ability of Agency to Provide Services
	5. Status of, and Opportunities for, Shared Facilities
	6. Accountability for Community Service Needs, Including Government Structure and Operational Efficiencies
	7. Any Other Matter Related to Effective or Efficient Service Delivery, As Required by Commission Policy


	7.4 Map of Gonzales Farmland - Ag  tab
	7.4 Map of Gonzales Ag Land
	7.5  City-CTY MOA tab
	7.5 Attach Gonzales MOA - full text.
	1. Draft Minutes for 9-22-14.pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	2. Anticipated Items EO report 092214  OK.pdf
	Kate McKenna, AICP
	Executive Officer


	0. Final Agenda - 9-13-14.pdf
	LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION OF MONTEREY COUNTY

	3. Draft Register of Checks EOR 9-22-14 - pdf.pdf
	KATE McKENNA, AICP

	7.0 DRAFT Gonzales EO report 092214-5.pdf
	P.O. Box 1369                         132 Gabilan Street, Suite 102
	Salinas, CA 93902                                             Salinas, CA 93901
	KATE McKENNA, AICP
	Executive Officer





